UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 1-K

ANNUAL REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO REGULATION A OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021

HC GOVERNMENT REALTY TRUST, INC.

(Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter)
L.R.S. Employment Identification Number: 81-1867397

Maryland 81-1867397

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (L.R.S. No.)

390 S. Liberty Street, Suite 100
‘Winston-Salem, NC 27101

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(336) 477-2535

Issuer’s telephone number, including area code

COMMON STOCK
(TITLE OF EACH CLASS OF SECURITIES ISSUED PURSUANT TO REGULATION A)




Part I1

In this annual report, references to the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our” or similar terms refer to HC Government Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation, together
with its consolidated subsidiaries, including HC Government Realty Holdings, L.P, a Delaware limited partnership, which we refer to as our Operating Partnership. As used in
this annual report on Form 1-K, an affiliate of, or person affiliated with, a specified person, is a person, who or which, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the person specified.

STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

We make statements in this annual report on Form 1-K, or this annual report, that are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws. The
words “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “seek,” “may,” and similar expressions or statements regarding future periods are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that could cause our actual results,
performance or achievements, or industry results to differ materially from any predictions of future results, performance or achievements that we express or imply in this annual
report or in the information incorporated by reference in this annual report.
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The forward-looking statements included in this annual report are based upon our current expectations, plans, estimates, assumptions and beliefs that involve numerous
risks and uncertainties. Assumptions relating to the foregoing involve, among other things, judgments with respect to future economic, competitive and market conditions and
future business decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond our control. Although we believe that the expectations
reflected in such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, our actual results and performance could differ materially from those set forth in the forward-
looking statements. Factors that could have a material adverse effect on our operations and future prospects include, but are not limited to:

° changes in economic conditions generally and in the real estate and securities markets specifically, including, without limitation, inflationary pressures and rising

interest rates,

the ability of our management team to source, originate and acquire suitable investment opportunities,

our expectation that there will be opportunities to acquire additional properties leased to the United States of America,

our expectations regarding demand by the federal government for leased space,

the United States General Services Administration (the “GSA”) (acting for the United States as Tenant) renewing or extending one or more of the leases for one or

more of our GSA Properties (as defined below), whether pursuant to early termination options or at lease-end, and if not renewed or extended that we will be

successful in re-leasing the space,

. the impact of changes in real estate needs and financial conditions of federal, state and local governments,

° the continuing adverse impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) on the United States, regional and global economies and our financial condition and results of
operations,



° acts of terrorism and other disasters that are beyond our control,

) legislative or regulatory changes impacting our business or our assets, including changes to the laws governing the taxation of real estate investment trusts
(“REITs”) and Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) guidance related to Regulation A or the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (the “JOBS Act”),

° our ability to raise equity or debt capital,

° our compliance with applicable local, state and federal laws, including the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended, the Investment Company Act of 1940, as
amended, and other laws, or

° changes to generally accepted account principles, or GAAP.

Any of the assumptions underlying forward-looking statements could be inaccurate. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements
included in this annual report on Form 1-K. All forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this annual report on Form 1-K and the risk that actual results will differ
materially from the expectations expressed in this annual report on Form 1-K will increase with the passage of time. Except as otherwise required by the federal securities laws,
we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements after the date of this annual report on Form 1-K, whether as a result of new information,
future events, changed circumstances or any other reason. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements included in this annual report on
Form 1-K, the inclusion of such forward-looking statements should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other person that the objectives and plans set forth in this
annual report on Form 1-K will be achieved.




Item 1. Business
The Company

We are an internally-managed REIT, in the business of acquiring, developing, financing, owning and managing build-to-suit or improved-to-suit, single-tenant properties
leased primarily to the United States of America and administered by the GSA or directly by the federal government agencies or departments occupying such properties (referred
to as “GSA Properties”). We invest primarily in GSA Properties with sizes ranging from 5,000 to 50,000 rentable square feet, and in their first lease term after original
construction or renovation-to-suit. We generally intend to acquire GSA Properties that fulfill mission critical or citizen service functions. Leases associated with the GSA
Properties in which our company invests are full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America.

Prior to March 14, 2019, we were externally managed by Holmwood Capital Advisors, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“HCA”). On March 14, 2019, we
provided notice of nonrenewal of our management agreement with HCA, and the management agreement with HCA terminated on March 31, 2020. During the period between
March 14, 2019 and March 31, 2020, we transitioned from being externally managed to a fully internally-managed company. In connection with the termination of the
management agreement with HCA, we paid HCA a termination fee of $1,645,453, which was comprised of $1,275,000 in cash and $370,453 in shares of common stock of the
Company, at a per share price of $7.17, for a total of 51,667 shares.



As of the filing of this report, our portfolio consists of 27 GSA Properties, comprised of 23 GSA Properties that we own in fee simple, one GSA Property that we own
subject to a ground lease and three GSA Properties for which we have all of the rights to the profits, losses, any distributed cash flow and all of the other benefits and burdens of
ownership including for federal income tax purposes, each of which is leased to the United States. Our portfolio of GSA Properties (“Portfolio Properties™), which includes three
properties acquired during the year ended December 31, 2021, contains approximately 508,092 rentable square feet located in 18 states. Based on net operating income of our
Portfolio Properties, our portfolio has a weighted average remaining lease term of 8.8 years if none of the early termination rights are exercised and 4.9 years if all of the early
termination rights are exercised.

The GSA-leased, real estate asset class has a number of attributes that we believe will offer our stockholders significant benefits, including a highly creditworthy and
very stable tenant base, long-term lease structures and low risk of tenant turnover. GSA leases are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States, and the GSA has never
experienced a financial default. Payment of rents under GSA leases are funded through the Federal Buildings Fund and are not subject to direct federal appropriations, which can
fluctuate with federal budget and political priorities. In addition to presenting reduced risk of default, GSA leases typically have long initial terms of ten to 20 years with renewal
leases having terms of five to ten years, which limit operational risk. Upon renewal of a GSA lease, base rent typically is reset based on a number of factors at the time of renewal,
including inflation and the replacement cost of the building, that we generally expect will increase over the life of the lease.

GSA-leased properties generally provide attractive investment opportunities but require specialized knowledge and expertise. Each U.S. government agency has its own
customs, procedures, culture, needs and mission, which results in different requirements for its leased space. Furthermore, the GSA-leased sector is highly fragmented with a
significant amount of non-institutional owners. Moreover, while there are a number of national real estate brokers that hold themselves out as having GSA-leased property
expertise, there are no national or regional clearing houses for GSA-leased properties. Long-term relationships and specialized institutional knowledge regarding the agencies,
their space needs and the hierarchy and importance of a property to its tenant agency are crucial to understanding which agencies and properties present the greatest likelihood of
long-term agency occupancy, and, therefore, to identifying and acquiring attractive GSA-leased properties. Our portfolio is diversified among occupying agencies, including a
number of the largest and most essential agencies, such as the Drug Enforcement Administration, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration
Services, the U.S. Social Security Administration and the Department of Veterans Affairs.

We operate as an umbrella partnership REIT (“UPREIT”), which means that we conduct substantially all of our business through our Operating Partnership for which we
serve as the general partner. Our GSA Properties are owned by us through single-purpose entities, 24 of which are wholly owned by our Operating Partnership and three of which
are consolidated variable interest entities based upon management’s determination that the Operating Partnership has a variable interest in the entities and is the primary
beneficiary. While we focus on investments in GSA Properties, in the future, we also may invest in state and local government, mission critical, single tenant properties or
properties previously (but not exclusively) leased to the United States, the GSA or one or more occupying agencies.

We believe that in the long-term there will be a consistent flow of GSA Properties that meet our target investment criteria for acquiring, developing, leasing and
managing properties, which we expect will enable us to continue to enhance our portfolio into the foreseeable future. We do not anticipate making acquisitions outside of the
United States or its territories.




We primarily make direct acquisitions of GSA Properties, but we may also invest in GSA Properties through indirect investments, such as joint ventures, whereby we
may own less than 100% of the beneficial interest therein; provided, that in such event, we will acquire at least 50% of the outstanding voting securities in the investment, or
otherwise comply with SEC staff guidance regarding majority-owned subsidiaries so that the investment meets the definition of “majority-owned subsidiary” under the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

Our Competitive Strengths
We believe that we benefit from the following competitive strengths:
High Quality Portfolio Leased to Mission-Critical U.S. Government Agencies

° ‘We own a portfolio of 27 GSA Properties, comprised of 23 GSA Properties that we own in fee simple, one GSA Property that we own subject to a ground lease and
three GSA Properties for which we have all of the rights to the profits, losses, any distributed cash flow and all of the other benefits and burdens of ownership
including for federal income tax purposes, each of which is leased to the United States. As of the date of this annual report on Form 1-K, based upon net operating
income, the weighted average age of our Portfolio Properties is approximately 9.3 yearsl, and the weighted average remaining lease term is approximately 8.8
years if none of the early termination rights are exercised and 4.9 years if all of the early termination rights are exercised.

° All of our Portfolio Properties are occupied by agencies that serve mission-critical or citizen service functions.

) Our Portfolio Properties generally meet our investment criteria, which target GSA Properties with sizes ranging between 5,000 to 50,000 rentable square feet and in
their first lease term after original construction or renovation-to-suit.

Credit Quality of Tenant
° Leases are full faith and credit obligations of the United States and, as such, are not subject to the risk of annual appropriations.
° Leases typically include inflation-adjusted rent increases for certain property operating costs, which the Company believes will mitigate expense variability.

Strategic Opportunities and Investment Strategy

We believe there is a significant opportunity to acquire and build a portfolio consisting of high-quality GSA Properties at attractive risk-adjusted returns. We invest in
GSA Properties primarily with sizes ranging from 5,000 to 50,000 rentable square feet, and in their first lease term after original construction or renovation-to-suit. We generally
intend to acquire GSA Properties that fulfill mission critical or citizen service functions. Leases associated with the GSA Properties in which our Company invests are full faith
and credit obligations of the United States of America.



We believe the subset of GSA Properties on which we focus is highly fragmented and often overlooked by larger investors, which can provide opportunities for us to buy
at more attractive pricing compared to other properties within the asset class. We also believe selection based on agency function, building use and location will help to mitigate
risk of non-renewal. While we intend to focus on this subset of GSA Properties, we are not limited in the properties in which we may invest. We have the flexibility to expand our
investment focus as market conditions may dictate, subject to broad investment policies adopted by our Board, as may be amended by the Board from time to time.

! The weighted-average age of the properties in our portfolio is based on the later of (i) the date upon which the property was built or (ii) the date upon which the property was
fully renovated.




Description of Our Properties

The following table presents an overview of our properties as of December 31, 2021:

Rentable
Current Sq. Ft % of Early

Property Occupant (RSF) Portfolio ! % Leased Termination 2

Expiration
Date

Effective
Annual
Rent

Effective
Annual
Rent per
RSF

Effective
Annual
Rent % of
Portfolio




Our Operating Properties

Port Saint Lucie, Florida DEA 24,858 4.9% 100%
Jonesboro, Arkansas SSA 16,439 3.2% 100%
Lorain, Ohio SSA 11,607 2.3% 100%
Cape Canaveral, Florida CBP 14,704 2.9% 100%
Johnson City, Tennessee FBI 10,115 2.0% 100%
Fort Smith, Arkansas CIS 13,816 2.7% 100%
Silt, Colorado BLM 18,813 3.7% 100%
Lakewood, Colorado
DOT 19,241 3.8% 100%
Moore, Oklahoma SSA 15,445 3.0% 100%
Lawton, Oklahoma SSA 9,298 1.8% 100%
Norfolk, Virginia
SSA 53,917 10.6% 100%
Montgomery, Alabama CIS 21,420 4.2% 100%
San Antonio, Texas ICE 38,756 7.6% 100%
Knoxville, lowa VA
16,731 3.3% 100%
Champaign, Illinois FBI 11,180 2.2% 100%
Sarasota, Florida USDA 28,210 5.6% 100%
Monroe, Louisiana VA
21,124 4.2% 100%
Ft. Lauderdale, Florida ICE 16,000 3.2% 100%
Lawrence, Kansas
BEIE 16,000 3.2% 100%
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma ICE 16,991 3.3% 100%
Birmingham, Alabama ICE 12,470 2.4% 100%
Columbia, South Carolina DEA 19,368 3.8% 100%
Lakewood, Washington ICE 9,567 1.9% 100%
Portland, Maine CIS 15,500 3.1% 100%
Van Buren, Missouri NPS 16,000 3.2% 100%
Houston, Texas SSA 21,019 4.1% 100%
Total - Our Operating
Properties 488,589 96.2 % 100 %
Our Development Property
Boise, Idaho CIS / Non-GSA
19,503 3.8% 100%
Total - Our Development 19,503 3.8% 100%
Property
Total - Our Portfolio 508,092 100.0% 100 %

1 By rentable square footage.

5/31/2022
1/11/2022
3/31/2021
7/15/2022
8/20/2022
10/30/2024
9/30/2024
No Early
Termination
4/9/2022
8/16/2020
No Early
Termination
12/8/2026
4/30/2022
No Early
Termination
4/12/2028
7/19/2028
No Early
Termination
4/9/2028
No Early
Termination
12/27/2028
10/31/2034
8/4/2030
2/27/2029
6/7/2031
1/21/2030
2/21/2030

12/1/2037 3

5/31/2027
1/11/2027
3/31/2024
7/15/2027
8/20/2027
10/30/2029
9/30/2029

6/20/2024

4/9/2027
8/16/2025

6/26/2027

12/8/2031
4/30/2027

1/11/2032

4/12/2033
7/19/2038

9/30/2023
4/9/2033
2/28/2033

12/27/2033
10/31/2039
8/4/2035
2/27/2034
6/7/2036
1/21/2035
2/21/2035

12/1/2042
3

$ 585095 $ 23.54 3.7%
$ 627513 § 38.17 4.0%
$§ 389832 § 33.59 2.5%
$ 687370 § 46.75 4.3%
$ 401,807 $ 39.72 2.5%
$ 435465 § 31.52 2.7%
$ 391,968 $ 20.83 2.5%
$ 471,711 $ 24.52 3.0%
$§ 535233 § 34.65 3.4%
$ 213,554 $ 22.97 1.3%
$ 1,430,664 $ 26.53 9.0%
$ 588,598 § 27.48 3.7%
$ 1,103,088 $ 28.46 6.9%
$ 691,742 $ 4134 4.4%
$ 374134 § 33.46 2.4%
$ 925178 § 32.80 5.8%
$ 754361 $ 35.71 4.7%
$ 707,143 $ 44.20 4.4%
$§ 598,606 $ 37.41 3.8%
$ 489280 § 28.80 3.1%
$§ 453414 $ 36.36 2.9%
$ 594324 % 30.69 3.7%
$ 467407 $ 48.86 2.9%
$ 494941 § 31.93 3.1%
$ 366391 § 22.90 2.3%
$§ 591,531 $ 28.14 3.7%
$ 15,370,350 § 31.46 96.7 %
§ 522,102 § 26.77 33 %
$ 522,102 26.77 3.3%
$ 15,892,452 31.28 100.0%

2 The early termination date, if any, for each lease generally represents the commencement of the time period during which our tenant may exercise its right to terminate the lease,
in whole or in part, at any time effective on or after such date by providing us with sufficient prior written notice. The prior written notice required for early termination under
each lease ranges from 60 to 180 days. If our tenant exercises its early termination rights with respect to any lease, we cannot guarantee that we will be able to re-lease the
premises on comparable terms, if at all. The lease expiration date is the date the applicable lease will terminate if the early termination is not exercised or if no early termination

right exists.

3 Early termination date and lease expiration date are based on the estimated development project completion.




Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

We are a real estate investment trust, or REIT, in the business of acquiring, developing, financing, owning and managing build-to-suit or improved-to-suit, single-tenant
properties leased primarily to the United States of America and administered by the GSA or directly by the federal government agencies or departments occupying such GSA
Properties. We invest primarily in GSA Properties with sizes that range from 5,000 to 50,000 rentable square feet, and in their first lease term after original construction or
renovation-to-suit. We further emphasize GSA Properties that fulfill mission critical or direct citizen service functions. Leases associated with the GSA Properties in which our
company invests are full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America. We intend to grow our portfolio primarily through acquisitions of single-tenant, federal
government-leased properties; although, we have elected, and may continue to elect, to develop, or joint venture with others in the development of, competitively bid, built-to-suit,
single-tenant, federal government-leased properties, or buy facilities that are leased to credit-worthy state or municipal tenants.

As of December 31, 2021, our portfolio consisted of 27 GSA Properties, comprised of 23 GSA Properties that we own in fee simple, one GSA Property that we own
subject to a ground lease and three GSA Properties for which we have all of the rights to the profits, losses, any distributed cash flow and all of the other benefits and burdens of
ownership including for federal income tax purposes, each of which is leased to the United States. Our Portfolio Properties contain approximately 508,092 rentable square feet
located in 18 states. As of December 31, 2021, our Portfolio Properties are 98% leased to the United States of America and occupied by 12 different federal government agencies.
Based on net operating income of each property, our portfolio has a weighted average remaining lease term of 8.8 years if none of the early termination rights are exercised and
4.9 years if all of the early termination rights are exercised.

Our Operating Partnership, through wholly-owned special purpose entities, or SPEs, holds substantially all of our assets and conducts substantially all of our business.
As of December 31, 2021, we owned approximately 54.2% of the aggregate common limited partnership interests in our Operating Partnership, or common units. We also own
all of the preferred limited partnership interests in our Operating Partnership. We were formed in 2016 as a Maryland corporation and we have elected to be taxed as a REIT for
federal income tax purposes commencing with our fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.

Operating Results
For the year ended December 31, 2021

At December 31, 2021, we owned 24 properties and all of the rights to the profits, losses, any distributed cash flow and all of the other benefits and burdens of ownership
including for federal income tax purposes for three other properties. Our portfolio comprises 508,092 rentable square feet located in 18 states and is 98% leased to the United
States and either administered by the GSA or occupying department or agency.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, we earned revenues of $14,880,680 and incurred operating costs of $4,520,583. Our net operating income was $10,360,097
and our net loss was $7,192,548 for the year ended December 31, 2021. Our net loss attributed to our common stockholders was $5,184,771 after allocating $4,176,602 of the
Company’s net loss to the noncontrolling interest in our Operating Partnership and after deducting preferred stock dividends of $2,168,825.

For the year ended December 31, 2020

At December 31, 2020, we owned 21 properties and all of the rights to the profits, losses, any distributed cash flow and all of the other benefits and burdens of ownership
including for federal income tax purposes for three other properties. As of December 31, 2020, our portfolio comprised 447,672 rentable square feet located in 16 states and was
100% leased to the United States and either administered by the GSA or occupying department or agency.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, we earned revenues of $13,074,121 and incurred operating costs of $3,878,851. Our net operating income was $9,195,270
and our net loss was $6,924,575 for the year ended December 31, 2020. Our net loss attributed to our common stockholders was $4,933,550 after allocating $3,810,216 of the
Company’s net loss to the noncontrolling interest in our Operating Partnership and after deducting preferred stock dividends of $1,819,191. See ltem 6. Other Information —
Revisions to Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 below.




Calculating Net Operating Income

We believe that our net operating income, or NOI, a non-GAAP measure, is a useful measure of our operating performance. We define NOI as total property revenues
less total property operating expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization, interest expense, and asset management fees. Other REITs may use different methodologies for
calculating NOI, and accordingly, our NOI may not be comparable to the NOI of other REITs. We believe that NOI as we calculate it, provides a useful measure of operating
performance not immediately apparent from GAAP operating income or net income. We use NOI to evaluate our performance on a property-by-property basis, because NOI
more meaningfully reflects the core operations of our properties as well as their performance by excluding items not related to property operating performance and by capturing
trends in property operating expenses. However, NOI should only be used as an alternative measure of our financial performance.

The following table reflects a reconciliation of NOI to net loss as computed in accordance with GAAP for the periods presented.

For the year ended December 31,

(Revised)
2021 2020
Revenues $ 14,880,680 $ 13,074,121
Less:
Operating expenses 4,261,391 3,639,752
Property management fee 259,192 239,099
Total expenses 4,520,583 3,878,851
Net operating income 10,360,097 9,195,270
Less:
Asset management fee - 124,359
Corporate expenses 1,958,993 2,006,162
Depreciation and amortization 5,857,818 5,005,624
Interest expense 8,754,265 8,143,751
Equity-based compensation 981,569 839,949
Net loss (7,192,548) (6,924,575)
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (4,176,602) (3,810,216)
Net loss attributed to HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. (3,015,946) (3,114,359)
Less: Preferred stock dividends (2,168,825) (1,819,191)
Net loss attributed to HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. available to common shareholders $ 5,184,771y § (4,933,550)

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our business model is intended to drive growth through acquisitions. Our Credit Facility (as defined below) and Series C Offering (as defined below) provided us with
liquidity through both debt and equity investments. These debt and equity resources enabled us to refinance our existing debt and provided us with additional capital to continue
pursuing our investment strategy. Access to the capital markets is an important factor for our continued success. In November 2019, our common stock offering pursuant to
Regulation A (the “Regulation A Offering”) expired and we did not file a post-qualification amendment to extend the Regulation A Offering. In August 2020, we raised
$90,000,000 in gross proceeds from our Series C Offering, and we may raise additional capital in the future to acquire and develop GSA Properties or buy facilities that are leased
to credit-worthy state or municipal tenants. However, we cannot make assurances that we will be able to raise additional capital on acceptable terms, or at all. As of December
31, 2021, we had approximately $2,889,654 available in cash and cash equivalents.

Liquidity Generally
Our need for liquidity will be primarily to fund (i) operating expenses and cash dividends and distributions; (ii) property acquisitions; (iii) capital expenditures and
development projects; (iv) payment of principal of, and interest on, outstanding indebtedness; and (v) other investments, consistent with the investment guidelines and investment

policies adopted by our Board.

As of the date of this annual report on Form 1-K, we have one GSA Property under development which will require approximately $2,300,000 of funding through
borrowings on our Credit Facility.




Capital Resources
Our capital resources are substantially related to (i) the Credit Facility and (ii) the Series C Offering.

On August 14, 2020, the Company completed the sale and issuance of 3,600,000 shares of the Company’s 7.00% Series C Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (the
“Series C Preferred Stock™) to qualified investors in a private offering pursuant to exemptions from registration provided by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”), and Regulation D promulgated thereunder, for an aggregate purchase price of $90,000,000 (the “Series C Offering”). After deducting a placement
agent fee of $2,835,000, net proceeds to the Company from the Series C Offering were $87,165,000. On August 14, 2020, the Company used $21,846,295 and $62,100,000 of
the net proceeds from the Series C Offering to repay all outstanding mezzanine debt and amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility, respectively, as of such date.

In December 2021, the Company, through its Operating Partnership, amended and restated its senior revolving credit facility (as amended, the “Credit Facility”) with
KeyBanc Capital Markets, Inc., as sole bookrunner and lead arranger, and KeyBank National Association, as syndication agent and administrative agent. The Credit Facility has
total availability of up to $100,000,000, subject to customary terms and availability conditions. The Credit Facility includes an accordion feature that will permit the Operating
Partnership to further increase the commitments available to the Operating Partnership to up to $200,000,000, subject to customary terms and conditions. The Company intends to
use the Credit Facility to repay certain indebtedness, fund acquisitions and capital expenditures and provide working capital.

As of December 31, 2021, we had borrowed approximately $29,000,000, with approximately $71,000,000 committed and undrawn, and approximately $50,680,000 of
availability for borrowing under our Credit Facility.

Trend Information

Our Company, through our Operating Partnership, is engaged primarily in the acquisition, development, leasing and disposition of single-tenanted, mission critical or
customer facing properties, leased to the United States of America. As full faith and credit obligations of the United States, these leases offer risk-adjusted returns that are
attractive, inasmuch as there continues to be no directly comparable credit quality in the marketplace.

While there can be no assurance, we believe our Credit Facility and the proceeds of the Series C Offering will support our Company’s growth strategy, provide liquidity
to recruit and retain qualified personnel, and enhance purchasing power for goods and services in connection with the operation of our Portfolio Properties for the near term.

We are not aware of any material trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or events, favorable or unfavorable, other than the effect of national economic conditions, such as
inflationary pressures and rising interest rates, and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on real estate generally, that may reasonably be anticipated to have a material effect on
our revenue or income from continuing operations, profitability, liquidity or capital resources, or that would cause our reported financial information to not necessarily to be
indicative of future operating results or our financial condition.




Item 3. Directors and Officers

The individuals listed below are our executive officers and directors. The following table and biographical descriptions set forth certain information with respect to such
executive officers and directors:

Name Position Age Term of Office
Steven A. Hale II Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (1) 38 March 2019
Jacqlyn Piscetelli Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary 38 March 2019
John W. Braswell Chief Operating Officer 52 January 2022
Philip Perry President 41 January 2022
Brad G. Garner Director 39 March 2019
Jeffrey S. Stewart Director 54 March 2019
Anthony J. Sciacca, Jr. Director 51 September 2019
John Linker Director 46 March 2022

(D Mr. Hale previously also served as our President from August 2020 until the appointment of Philip Perry as president in January 2022

Steven A. Hale II. Mr. Hale has managed the Hale Partnership Fund LP, MGEN-II Hale Fund LP, Clark-Hale Fund LP, and Hale Medical Office Building Fund, LP, via
Hale Partnership Capital Management, LLC (“HPCM”), since September 2010. In November 2017, Mr. Hale was named Chairman of the Board for Stanley Furniture Company,
Inc. (since renamed HG Holdings, Inc.). He has served as Chief Executive Officer of HG Holdings, Inc. since March 2018. Prior to founding HPCM, Mr. Hale worked for Babson
Capital Management, LLC where he was responsible for primary coverage of distressed debt investments across a variety of industries including manufacturing commercial real
estate, services, and casinos/gaming. Prior to joining Babson, Mr. Hale was a Leveraged Finance Analyst at Bank of America Securities. Mr. Hale graduated from Wake Forest
University in 2005, where he majored in economics, minored in psychology and religion, and was a three-year letterman on the varsity football team.

Jacglyn Piscetelli. Ms. Piscetelli served as Chief Financial Officer of Stanley Furniture Company, LLC (“Stanley Furniture”) from March 2018 until January 2019
where she directed all finance and accounting operations. Prior to joining Stanley Furniture, Ms. Piscetelli served as the Financial Executive — Governance for the Financial
Management group at BB&T Corporation (“BB&T”) from 2016 to 2018 where she managed BB&T’s Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302 and 404 compliance programs. From 2013 to
2016, Ms. Piscetelli worked in BB&T’s Accounting Policy group where she was primarily responsible for monitoring the issuance of new accounting pronouncements and
evaluating their impact on the financial institution. Ms. Piscetelli spent over 7 years in public accounting at Ernst & Young LLP (“EY”) in their Assurance practice. At EY, she
served both public and private clients with domestic and foreign operations across a variety of industries including manufacturing and distribution, automotive, retail and financial
services. Ms. Piscetelli graduated from Wake Forest University in 2006 with a B.S. and M.S. in Accountancy.

John W. Braswell. Mr. Braswell served as Senior Vice President of Development for Rooker from October 2009 until December 2021 where he was responsible for the
relationship management with GSA Contracting Officers, tenant agencies, GSA vendors, and GSA project managers. He led research and due diligence of GSA development
opportunities by conducting site studies for properties to determine project viability. Mr. Braswell was also heavily involved in the development processes from start to
completion of projects. Prior to joining Rooker, Mr. Braswell was the managing member of LBA Properties and created new lines of GSA development business for LBA
including a commercial construction company and property management division. Mr. Braswell spent approximately 10 years as owner of a design firm and developing for GSA,
which began in 1999. Under the company name Sturncor, Mr. Braswell developed institutionalized processes for the design, development and construction of state and federally
occupied assets. In 1988, Mr. Braswell joined Barnes and Ritchie Architects and worked his way to lead project manager for the firm, where he remained for 10 years before
beginning to develop real estate.

Philip Perry. Mr. Perry served as Vice President of Real Estate Development for Rooker from February 2015 until December 2021 where he was responsible for the
procurement and development of all government development. Prior to joining Rooker, Mr. Perry was managing director at Studley, Inc. (now Savills) from 2008 until 2015
where he managed the GSA National Broker Contracts in Region 4, managing hundreds of GSA lease procurements directly and via oversight of Studley’s small business
subcontractors. Mr. Perry spent approximately 3 years in public accounting at PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) in their Assurance practice. At PwC, he served primarily private
clients across a variety of industries including manufacturing, retail, professional sports, and broadcasting. Mr. Perry graduated from Georgia Tech in 2003, where he majored in
Business Management, and was a four-year letterman on the baseball team. Mr. Perry received his MBA from Georgia Tech in 2005.




Brad G. Garner. Mr. Garner joined HPCM in 2015 as Chief Financial Officer and Partner. In April 2018, Mr. Garner was named Chief Financial Officer of HG
Holdings, Inc. (formerly Stanley Furniture Company, Inc.). Mr. Garner leads real estate efforts and private equity investments for the Hale entities. He also served as Chief
Financial Officer of Best Bar Ever, Inc., a protein bar business from 2015 to 2017. Mr. Garner assisted in raising and structuring a capital investment and successful exit to a
strategic partner while overseeing all financial reporting functions during a two-year time horizon. Prior to taking on that role, he spent ten years in public accounting at Dixon
Hughes Goodman LLP (“DHG”), the largest public accounting firm headquartered in the Southeast, as a Senior Tax Manager. At DHG, he served domestic closely held
companies (specifically pass-through entities) and individuals. These clients represented a variety of industries including manufacturing and distribution, construction and real
estate, and financial institutions. Mr. Garner earned a B.S. and M.S. in Accounting from Wake Forest University in 2006.

Jeffiey S. Stewart. Mr. Stewart has been the Chairman of the Foursquare Foundation Investment Committee since 2008. Mr. Stewart also currently sits on Morgan
Stanley’s North Haven Credit Advisory Board. Mr. Stewart is a highly experienced portfolio manager with 24 years of experience investing and researching debt and equity,
including equity research at Interstate/Johnson Lane, a financial services company, fixed income at First Union National Bank, and portfolio management at Babson Capital
Management, LLC. Mr. Stewart started his career as a United States Marine in 1985. Three time meritoriously promoted, he was awarded a NROTC scholarship in 1988 and
attended UNC Chapel Hill, where he received a BSBA with a concentration in finance and a minor in history with distinction.

Anthony J. Sciacca, Jr. Mr. Sciacca served as Head of Global Alternative Investments at Barings Real Estate Advisers LLC (now known as Babson Capital Management
LLC). Mr. Sciacca was responsible for overseeing the group's investment activities across private equity, asset-based investments, and real assets. He served as the Head of
Barings Alternative Investments at Barings LLC. Previously, he served as a Managing Director, Head of Babson Capital Strategic Investors and Head of Global Business
Development Group at Babson. In this capacity, he drove business development initiatives across Babson's investment strategies from fixed income to alternative asset markets
and oversaw the management of Babson's institutional and retail relationships globally. He joined Babson in 2006. He also led the middle-market bank loan business at Babson’s
U.S. bank loan team. Mr. Sciacca was also a member of Babson’s Senior Management Team and the President of Babson Capital Securities. He was a Managing Director and the
Head of Structured Credit Origination for the collateralized loan obligation and corporate collateralized debt obligation businesses at Wachovia Securities. Mr. Sciacca was
employed at Wachovia Securities from April 2002 to April 2006. Before that, he was a Managing Director at Bear, Stearns & Co. where he was a structured credit market
specialist. Mr. Sciacca was an Associate Director at Bank of America from October 1996 to September 2000. He served as a Consultant at Accenture from September 1993 until
October 1996. He also worked in middle market senior lending as well as financial services consulting with Accenture. Mr. Sciacca serves as a member of the Board of Managers
of Cornerstone Real Estate Advisors LLC. He has worked in the industry since 1993 and his industry experience encompasses private equity, middle market finance and
structured credit. He received a B.S. degree in Applied Economics from Cornell University in 1993.

John Linker. Mr. John R. Linker was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of Serta Simmons Bedding, LCC effective April 2022.
Previously, Mr. Linker served as Executive Vice President and CFO at JELD-WEN Holding, Inc, from November 2018 to March 2022. At JELD-WEN, he also served as Senior
Vice President of Corporate Development and Investor Relations from 2015 until 2018 and as Treasurer from 2012 to 2015. While at JELD-WEN, John led 15 acquisitions,
coordinated the company’s initial public offering and subsequent secondary offerings, led several debt refinancings, and built a high-performing finance team. Prior to joining
JELD-WEN, Mr. Linker held the position of Director, Mergers and Acquisitions for the Aerospace Systems division of United Technologies Corporation and its predecessor,
Goodrich Corporation, from 2008 to 2012. Mr. Linker began his career in investment banking for Wells Fargo and consulting for Accenture PLC. Mr. Linker holds a B.A. in
Economics and International Studies from Duke University and an M.B.A. from The Fuqua School of Business at Duke University.

10




Executive Compensation

The following table summarizes compensation to our executive officers for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively:

Total
Name Year Salary Equity Awards Compensation
Steven A. Hale 11 2021 $ 225,000 $ 225,005 $ 450,005
Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Past President 2020 $ 225,000 $ 2,062,574 $ 2,287,574
Jacqlyn Piscetelli 2021 $ 150,000 $ 100,000 $ 250,000
Chief Financial Officer 2020 $ 150,000 $ 314832 $ 464,832

On December 31, 2021, the Company granted 24,404 long-term incentive plan units in the Operating Partnership (“LTIP Units”) to Mr. Hale and 10,846 LTIP Units to
Ms. Piscetelli, which vested immediately upon the grant date. The fair value of the grant on December 31, 2021 was $9.22 per share, the estimated fair value per share of the
Company’s common stock as of June 30, 2021.

On December 21, 2020, the Company granted an aggregate of 221,069 LTIP Units to Mr. Hale and 33,744 LTIP Units to Ms. Piscetelli. Of the total 221,069 LTIP Units
granted to Mr. Hale, 24,116 LTIP Units vested immediately upon the grant date and 196,953 LTIP Units vest over five years. Of the total 33,744 LTIP Units granted to Ms.
Piscetelli, 10,718 LTIP Units vested immediately upon the grant date and 23,026 LTIP Units vest over two years. The fair value of the grant on December 21, 2020 was $9.33 per
share, the estimated net asset value per share of the Company’s common stock as of June 30, 2020.

Director Compensation

In each of 2021 and 2020, the Company granted $42,000 of share-based compensation in the form of restricted shares of our common stock to certain of our non-
employee directors. The 2021 grant will vest on December 31, 2022 and the 2020 grant vested on December 21, 2021.

A description of our 2016 Equity Incentive Plan is incorporated by reference herein from the post-qualification amendment to our Offering Statement on Form 1-A
located at: https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495418012065/hcgov_lapos.htm under the caption “COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS— HC Government Realty Trust 2016 Long Term Incentive Plan”

Item 4. Security Ownership of Management and Certain Security Holders

The table below sets forth, as of the filing of this report, certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of our stock for (1) each person who is the beneficial
owner of 10% or more of our outstanding shares of any class of voting stock and (2) each of our directors and executive officers as a group, individually naming each director or
executive officer who is the beneficial owner of 10% or more of our outstanding shares of any class of voting stock. Each person named in the table has sole voting and
investment power with respect to all of the shares of common stock shown as beneficially owned by such person.

The SEC has defined “beneficial ownership” of a security to mean the possession, directly or indirectly, of voting power and/or investment power over such security. A
stockholder is also deemed to be, as of any date, the beneficial owner of all securities that such stockholder has the right to acquire within 60 days after that date through (1) the
exercise of any option, warrant or right, (2) the conversion of a security, (3) the power to revoke a trust, discretionary account or similar arrangement or (4) the automatic
termination of a trust, discretionary account or similar arrangement. In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by a person and the percentage ownership of that
person, our shares of common stock subject to options or other rights (as set forth above) held by that person that are exercisable as of the filing of this report or will become
exercisable within 60 days thereof, are deemed outstanding, while such shares are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing percentage ownership of any other person.
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Amount and

Nature of
Beneficial
Amount and Nature of Ownership Percent of
Title of Class Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership Acquirable Class
Common Stock All Executive Officers and Directors! 50,192 Shares N/A 3.2%
Common Stock HG Holdings, Inc.2 300,000 Shares N/A 19.1%
Series B Preferred Stock All Executive Officers and Directorsl 1,275,000 Shares N/A 55.4%
Series B Preferred Stock Steven A. Hale I14 1,275,000 Shares N/A 55.4%
Series B Preferred Stock Hale Partnership Capital Management 2,6 1,275,000 Shares N/A 55.4%
Series B Preferred Stock HG Holdings, Inc.2 1,025,000 Shares N/A 44.6%
Series B Preferred Stock The Vanderbilt University7 500,000 Shares N/A 21.7%
Series B Preferred Stock Hale Government Building Fund, LP 5 425,000 Shares N/A 18.5%
Series B Preferred Stock International C}E}u::;;g the Foursquare 250,000 Shares N/A 10.9%
Series C Preferred Stock Equitrust Life Insurance Company9 800,000 Shares N/A 22.2%
1 The address of each beneficial owner is 390 S Liberty Street, Suite 100, Winston-Salem, NC 27101.
2 The address of HG Holdings, Inc. and HPCM is 2115 E. 7th Street, Suite 101, Charlotte, NC 27804.
3 Includes the shares of Series B Preferred Stock directed by Hale Partnership Capital Management ( HPCM ).
4 Includes all shares of the Series B Preferred Stock that Steven A. Hale II controls directly or indirectly through affiliated entities of which Steven A. Hale II disclaims
beneficial ownership.
5 The address of Hale Government Building Fund, LP is 3675 Marine Drive, Greenville, NC 27834.

6 HPCM serves as investment manager or adviser to commingled funds, group trusts and separate accounts (such investment companies, funds, trusts and accounts,
collectively referred to as the Funds ). In certain cases, HPCM may act as an adviser or sub-adviser to certain Funds. In its role as investment adviser, sub-adviser and/or
manager, HPCM may possess voting and/or investment power over the securities of the Company owned by the Funds and may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of
these shares. However, all securities reported on the table are owned by the Funds, and HPCM disclaims beneficial ownership of all of the shares shown. HPCM's shares
include 500,000 shares beneficially owned by The Vanderbilt University, 425,000 shares beneficially owned by Hale Government Building Fund, LP and 250,000 shares
beneficially owned by International Church of the Foursquare Gospel, over which HPCM maintains voting control.

7 The address of The Vanderbilt University is 2100 West End Ave, Nashville, TN 37203.

8 The address of International Church of the Foursquare Gospel is 1910 W. Sunset Boulevard, Suite 200, Los Angeles, CA 90026.

9 The address of Equitrust Life Insurance Company is 222 W Adams Street, Suite 2150, Chicago, IL 60606.

Item 5. Interest of Management and Others in Certain Transactions
Series B Preferred Stock Issuances

In April 2020, the Company issued a total of 350,000 shares of its 10.00% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B Preferred Stock”) to HG
Holdings, Inc., for total proceeds of $3,500,000, to partially finance the acquisition of the property located in Birmingham, Alabama.

In June 2020, the Company issued 475,000 shares of its Series B Preferred Stock to HG Holdings, Inc., for total proceeds of $4,750,000, to partially finance the
acquisition of the property located in Columbia, South Carolina.

In December 2020, the Company issued 45,000 shares of its Series B Preferred Stock to an investor affiliated with HPCM, for total proceeds of $450,000, to partially
fund the development project of the property located in Portland, Maine.

In September 2021, the Company issued 250,000 shares of its Series B Preferred Stock to an investor affiliated with HPCM for total proceeds of $2,500,000, to partially
fund the development of the property located in Boise, Idaho.

Predecessor Payables

Our Company had outstanding payables to our predecessor for various expenses paid on our behalf by our predecessor in the amount of $408,514. As of the date of this
annual report on Form 1-K, this amount remains outstanding.




Item 6. Other Information
Revisions to Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020

In December 2021, the Company’s management identified certain errors made with respect to the Company’s historical consolidated financial statements beginning with
the period from May 26, 2017 (the date of the contribution transaction between Holmwood Capital, LLC and the Operating Partnership) to December 31, 2020. In our capacity
as the general partner of the Operating Partnership, we incur various operating costs and general administrative expenses on behalf of and for the benefit of the Operating
Partnership. The Agreement of Limited Partnership, as amended, of the Operating Partnership requires that the Operating Partnership reimburse the general partner for all of its
operating costs and general administrative expenses. Prior to 2021, the reimbursement of our operating costs and general administrative expenses were not appropriately reflected
as expenses of or reimbursements from the Operating Partnership. We evaluated the materiality of these errors based on an analysis of quantitative and qualitative factors and do
not believe such errors had a material impact on an investor’s understanding of the Company’s historical consolidated financial condition or results of operations. The Company
has revised its consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 to correct such errors. Accordingly, the net loss attributed to the Company
available to common shareholders was overstated and the net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest in the Operating Partnership was understated. In addition, additional paid-
in capital and accumulated deficit of the Company was understated and noncontrolling interest in the Operating Partnership was overstated. There was no impact on the
consolidated net loss, total equity or cash flows of the Company. The effects of such revisions are as follows:

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

Noncontrolling
Preferred Common Additional Total Interest in
Stock Stock Paid- Accumulated  Cumulative  Stockholders' Operating Total
Offering
Par Value Par Value in Capital Costs Deficit Dividends Equity Partnership Equity

Balance, December 31,

2019 (previously reported) $ 1,324  $ 1,438 $24,463,133 $(1,459,479) $ (9,324,626) $ (3,478,926) $ 10,202,864 $ 4,752,606  $ 14,955,470
Allocation of NCI in
operating partnership

adjustment - - 1,337,415 - - - 1,337,415 (1,337,415) -
Net loss adjustment - - - - 3,621,764 - 3,621,764 (3,621,764) -
Balance, December 31,
2019 (revised) 1,324 1,438 25,800,548 (1,459,479 (5,702,862) (3,478,926) 15,162,043 (206,573) 14,955,470
Noncontrolling
Preferred Common Additional Total Interest in
Stock Stock Paid- Accumulated  Cumulative  Stockholders' Operating Total
Offering
Par Value Par Value in Capital Costs Deficit Dividends Equity Partnership Equity

Balance, December 31,

2020 (previously reported) 2,081 1,561 30,751,943 (1,271,266) (13,092,046) (6,143,463) 10,248,810 2,242,990 12,491,800
Allocation of NCI in
operating partnership

(2019 adjustment) - - 1,337,415 - - - 1,337,415 (1,337,415) -
Net loss (2019
adjustment) - - - - 3,621,764 - 3,621,764 (3,621,764) -

Balance, December 31,
2020 (prior to 2020

adjustments) 2,081 1,561 32,089,358 (1,271,266) (9,470,282) (6,143,463) 15,207,989 (2,716,189) 12,491,800
Allocation of NCI in
operating partnership
(2020 adjustment) - - 502,109 - - - 502,109 (502,109) -
Net loss (2020
adjustment) - - - - 653,061 - 653,061 (653,061) -
Balance, December 31,
2020 (revised) $ 2,081 § 1,561 $32,591,467 $(1,271,266) $ (8,817,221) $ (6,143,463) $ 16,363,159 $  (3,871,359) $12,491,800
For the year ended December 31, 2020 (Previously
’ Reported) (Revised)
December 31, December 31,
2020 Adjustments 2020

Consolidated Statement of Operations
Net loss $ (6,924,575) $ - 8 (6,924,575)



Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest in operating partnership
Net loss attributed to HC Government Realty Trust, Inc.
Preferred stock dividends

Net loss attributed to HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. available to common shareholders

Basic and diluted loss per share

Basic and diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding

(3,157,155) (653,061) (3,810,216)
(3,767,420) 653,061 (3,114,359)
(1,819,191) - (1,819,191)
(5,586,611) $ 653,061 (4,933,550)

(3.67) $ 0.43 (3.24)
1,523,719 1,523,719 1,523,719




Item 7. Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
HC Government Realty Trust, Inc.

Winston-Salem, North Carolina

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements



We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of HC Government Reality Trust, Inc. and subsidiaries (collectively, “the Company”) as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31,
2021, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements™). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period
ended December 31, 2021 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and are required to
be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether
due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or
fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Correction of Error

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, certain errors in the calculation of noncontrolling interest in the operating partnership occurred during periods
prior to and through December 31, 2020. Accordingly, amounts reported within the December 31, 2020 consolidated financial statements have been revised and an adjustment
has been made to the beginning stockholders’ equity presented in the consolidated financial statements to correct the error. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that
matter.

/s/ Cherry Bekaert LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2016.

Richmond, VA
April 28,2022




HC Government Realty Trust, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(Revised)
December 31, December 31,
2021 2020

ASSETS
Investment in real estate, net $ 118,416,451 109,066,096
Cash and cash equivalents 2,889,654 4,906,679
Restricted cash 222,362 192,068
Rent and other tenant receivables, net 1,619,704 1,339,332
Leasehold intangibles, net 11,914,316 11,231,765
Deposits on properties under contract - 100,000
Deferred financing, net 1,774,394 1,610,851
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,053,432 1,016,430

Total Assets $ 137,890,313 129,463,221
LIABILTIES
Revolving credit facility $ 29,000,000 15,650,000
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock, net of unamortized deferred offering costs 87,069,192 86,667,285
Mortgages payable, net of unamortized debt costs 9,084,697 9,277,699
Declared dividends and distributions 2,580,639 2,509,506
Accrued interest payable 139,213 134,053
Accounts payable 756,283 1,050,383
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,037,582 1,130,736
Deferred revenue 2,764,323 -
Below-market leases, net 415,319 551,759

Total Liabilities 132,847,248 116,971,421

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 13) -

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY



Preferred stock ($0.001 par value, 250,000,000 shares authorized and 2,331,000 and 2,081,000 shares issued and outstanding at

December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively) 2,331 2,081
Common stock ($0.001 par value, 750,000,000 shares authorized, 1,569,456 and 1,560,452 common shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively) 1,570 1,561
Additional paid-in capital 35,806,947 32,591,467
Offering costs (1,172,510) (1,271,266)
Accumulated deficit (11,833,167) (8,817,221)
Accumulated dividends and distributions (9,174,870) (6,143,463)
Total Stockholders' Equity 13,630,301 16,363,159
Noncontrolling interest in operating partnership (8,587,236) (3,871,359)
Total Equity 5,043,065 12,491,800
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 137,890,313 § 129,463,221

The following table presents the assets and liabilities of the Company's three consolidated variable interest entities as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are
included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets above. The assets in the table below include those assets that can only be used to settle obligations of the consolidated variable
interest entities. The liabilities in the table below include third-party liabilities of the consolidated variable interest entities only, and for which creditors or beneficial interest
holders do not have recourse to the Company, and exclude intercompany balances that eliminate in consolidation.

ASSETS OF CONSOLIDATED VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES THAT CAN ONLY BE USED TO SETTLE THE OBLIGATIONS OF CONSOLIDATED
VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES:

Buildings and improvements, net $ 10,467,017 $ 10,842,846
Intangible assets, net 20,332 128,130
Prepaids and other assets 426,630 418,292

Total Assets $ 10,913,979 § 11,389,268

LIABILITIES OF CONSOLIDATED VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES FOR WHICH CREDITORS OR BENEFICIAL INTEREST HOLDERS DO NOT HAVE
RECOURSE TO THE COMPANY.

Mortgages payable, net $ 9,084,697 $ 9,277,699
Intangible liabilities, net 1,310 33,053
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 175,724 176,964

Total liabilities $ 9,261,731  § 9,487,716

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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HC Government Realty Trust, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenues
Rental revenues
Real estate tax reimbursements and other revenues
Total revenues

Operating expenses

Depreciation and amortization

General and administrative

Professional expenses

Real estate and other taxes

Repairs and maintenance

Janitorial

Utilities

Management fees

Insurance

Ground leases

Miscellaneous property expenses

Equity-based compensation
Total operating expenses

Other expense
Interest expense
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Net other expense

Net loss

Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest in operating partnership
Net loss attributed to HC Government Realty Trust, Inc.

Preferred stock dividends

For the year ended

December 31,
2021

$ 14,325,786
554,894
14,880,680

5,857,818
1,439,533
519,460
1,297,267
1,094,644
750,231
677,502
259,192
281,816
97,085
62,846
981,569
13,318,963

8,754,265
8,754,265
(7,192,548)
(4,176,602)

(3,015,946)
(2,168,825)

$

(Revised)
December 31,
2020

12,655,991
418,130
13,074,121

5,005,624
1,271,553
734,609
1,226,327
881,573
600,158
537,642
363,458
248,189
95,983
49,880
839,949
11,854,945

7,210,700
933,051
8,143,751

(6,924,575)
(3,810,216)
(3,114,359)
(1,819,191)



Net loss attributed to HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. available to common shareholders $ (5,184,771) $ (4,933,550)

Basic and diluted loss per share $ (3.30) $ (3.24)

Basic and diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 1,569,456 1,523,719

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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HC Government Realty Trust, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Preferred Preferred Series Additional
Series A B Common Stock Paid-in
Par Par Par

Shares Value Shares Value Shares Value Capital

Offering  Accumulated

Costs

Deficit

Cumulative
Dividends
and

Distributions

Total
Stockholders'

Equity

Noncontrolling
Interest in
Operating

Partnership

Total

Equity



Balance,
December 31,
2019 (Revised)
Proceeds from
issuing
preferred
shares
Repurchase of
preferred
shares
Issuance of
common shares
in connection
with
termination of
management
agreement
Issuance of
common shares
in satisfaction
of acquistion
fee payable
Equity-based
compensation
long-term
incentive plan
shares
Equity-based
compensation -
restricted stock
Reimbursement
of offering
costs
Dividends and
distributions
Allocation of
NCI in
operating
partnership
Net loss
Balance,
December 31,
2020 (Revised)
Proceeds from
issuing
preferred stock
Equity-based
compensation
long-term
incentive plan
shares
Equity-based
compensation -
restricted stock
Reimbursement
of offering
costs
Dividends and
distributions
Allocation of
NCI in
operating
partnership
Net loss
Balance,
December 31,
2021

144,500 $ 144 1,180,000 $1,180 1,438,465 $1,438 $25,800,548 $(1,459,479)$ (5,702,862)$ (3,478,926)$ 15,162,043 $ (206,573) $14,955,470
- 870,000 870 - - 8,699,130 - - - 8,700,000 - 8,700,000
(113,500) (113) = = = - (2,837,387) = = - (2,837,500 - (2,837,500)
- - - - 51,667 52 370,401 - - - 370,453 - 370453
- - - - 55674 56 556,683 - - - 556,739 - 556,739
- - - - - - - - - - - 754,640 754,640
= = = - 14646 15 85,204 = = = 85,309 = 85,309
- - - - - - - 188213 - - 188,213 - 188213
. . . . - - - - - (2,664,537)  (2,664,537) (692,412) (3,356,949)
- - - - - - (83202) - - - (83,202) 83,202 -
- - - - - - - - (3,114,359) - (3,114,359) (3,810,216) (6,924,575
31,000 $ 31 2,050,000 $2,050 1,560,452 $1,561 $32,591,467 $(1,271266)$ (8,817,221)$ (6,143,463)$ 16,363,159 $  (3,871,359) $12,491,800
- - 250,000 250 - - 2,499,750 - - - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
- - - - - - - - - - - 900,676 900,676
- - - - 9,004 9 80,885 - - - 80,894 - 80,894
- - - - - - - 98,756 - - 98,756 - 98,756
. i g . - - - - - (3,031,407)  (3,031,407) (805,106) (3,836,513)
- - - - . - 634,845 . - - 634,845 (634,845) .
2 z 2 2 . . . - (3,015,946) - (3,015,946) (4,176,602) (7,192,548)
31,000 31 2,300,000 2,300 1,569.456 1,570 35,806,947 (1,172,510) (11,833,167)  (9,174,870) 13,630,301 (8,587,236) 5,043,065

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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HC Government Realty Trust, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

For the year ended December 31,

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (7,192,548) $ (6,924,575)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 4,328,781 3,755,760
Amortization of acquired lease-up costs 610,504 522,197
Amortization of in-place leases 918,533 727,667
Amortization of above/below-market leases, net 227,687 153,952
Amortization of debt issuance costs 895,989 842,941
Amortization of stock offering costs 401,907 145,371
Equity-based compensation 981,570 839,949
Net change in:
Rent and other tenant receivables, net (280,372) (202,836)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (53,898) (838,082)
Deposits on properties under contract 100,000 (100,000)
Accrued interest payable 5,160 (133,313)
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses (288,499) 2,003,784
Deferred revenue 2,764,323 -
Accrued management termination fee - (1,279,547)
Tenant improvement obligation - (1,201,661)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,419,137 (1,688,393)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital improvements and development project funding (3,964,281) (866,949)
Real estate acquisitions (12,273,674) (18,490,659)
Net cash used in investing activities (16,237,955) (19,357,608)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Debt issuance costs (1,026,797) (398,890)
Dividends paid (3,765,379) (3,084,869)
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock 2,500,000 8,700,000
Repurchase of preferred stock - (2,837,500)
Borrowings under revolving credit facility 13,350,000 15,950,000
Repayments under revolving credit facility - (61,250,000)
Proceeds from mandatorily redeemable preferred stock - 90,000,000
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock issuance cost - (3,478,086)
Mortgage principal payments (225,737) (212,650)
Repayment of mezzanine loan - (20,800,000)
Net cash provided from financing activities 10,832,087 22,588,005
Net (decrease) increase in Cash and cash equivalents and Restricted cash (1,986,731) 1,542,004
Cash and cash equivalents and Restricted cash, beginning of period 5,098,747 3,556,743
Cash and cash equivalents and Restricted cash, end of period $ 3,112,016 § 5,098,747
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 1,188,429 § 3,940,819
Cash paid for income taxes $ - 3 -
Non cash investing and financing activities:
Common shares issued in connection with termination of management agreement $ -3 370,453
Common shares issued in satisfaction of acquisition fee payable $ -3 556,739
Reimbursement of offering costs $ 98,756 % 188,213

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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HC Government Realty Trust, Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

1.

2.

Organization

HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. (the “REIT”), a Maryland corporation, was formed on March 11, 2016 to primarily source, acquire, develop, own and manage built-to-
suit and improved-to-suit, single-tenant properties leased by the United States of America through the U.S General Services Administration (the “GSA,” and such
properties, the “GSA Properties”). The REIT focuses primarily on GSA Properties within size ranges of 5,000 to 50,000 rentable square feet, and in their first lease term
after original construction or renovation-to-suit. Further, the REIT emphasizes GSA Properties that fulfill mission critical or citizen service functions. Leases associated
with GSA Properties are full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America and are administered by the U.S. General Services Administration or directly
through the occupying federal agencies (collectively, the “GSA”).

The REIT owns its properties through the REIT’s subsidiary, HC Government Realty Holdings, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (“Operating Partnership” and together
with the REIT, the “Company”). The Operating Partnership invests through wholly-owned special purpose limited liability companies, or special purpose entities
(“SPEs”). As of December 31, 2021, the REIT owned approximately 54.2% of the aggregate common limited partnership interests in our Operating Partnership, or
common units, and all of the preferred limited partnership interests in our Operating Partnership, or preferred units.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Operating Partnership and related SPEs and the accounts of the REIT. As of December 31, 2021, the
financial statements reflect the operations of 27 GSA Properties representing 508,092 rentable square feet located in 18 states. The properties are 98% leased to the
government of the United States of America and, based on net operating income, have a weighted average remaining lease term as of December 31, 2021 of 8.8 years if
none of the early termination rights are exercised and 4.9 years if all of the early termination rights are exercised. The REIT operates as an umbrella partnership real estate
investment trust, or an UPREIT, and has elected to be treated as a real estate investment trust, or REIT, for federal income tax purposes under the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, or the Code, beginning with the taxable year ended December 31, 2017.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting and Consolidation Basis - The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of the REIT, the Operating Partnership and 27 SPEs as of December 31,
2021. Of the SPEs, 24 are wholly-owned entities that are consolidated based upon the Company having a controlling financial interest, and three are consolidated variable
interest entities based upon management’s determination that the Operating Partnership has a variable interest in the entities and is the primary beneficiary. Intercompany
accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. The results of operations of companies or assets acquired are included from the dates of acquisition.

These statements include all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the results of all periods reported herein. All such adjustments are of a normal recurring nature.
Use of Estimates - The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.
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Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash - Cash and cash equivalents include all cash and liquid investments that mature three months or less from when they are
purchased. Restricted cash consists of amounts escrowed for future real estate taxes, insurance, and capital expenditures, as required by certain of the Company’s mortgage
debt agreements. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the Consolidated Balance Sheets that sum to
the totals of the same such amounts presented in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,889,654 $§ 4,906,679
Restricted cash 222,362 192,068
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 3,112,016 $ 5,098,747

At times, the Company’s cash and cash equivalents balance deposited with financial institutions may exceed federally insurable limits. The Company maintains separate
bank accounts at the Operating Partnership and SPE level. At December 31, 2021, one account had approximately $2,381,000 in excess of insured limits; all others were
below the insurable limits. The Company mitigates this risk by depositing funds with major financial institutions. The Company has not experienced any losses in
connection with such deposits.

Investments in Real Estate — Investment in real estate, net is comprised of all tangible assets held by the Company for rent or development. Real estate assets are
recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and repair costs are charged to expense as incurred. Costs incurred that extend the useful life of the real
estate investment are capitalized. Third party costs related to asset acquisitions are capitalized. Development, re-development and certain costs directly related to the
improvement of real properties are capitalized.

In accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) guidance on business combinations, the Company determines the fair value of the real estate
assets acquired on an ““as if vacant” basis.

Management estimates the “as if vacant” value considering a variety of factors, including the physical condition and quality of the buildings, estimated rental and
absorption rates, estimated future cash flows, and valuation assumptions consistent with current market conditions. The “as if vacant” fair value is allocated to land,
buildings and improvements based on relevant information obtained in connection with the acquisition of the property, including appraisals and property tax assessments.

Above-market and below-market lease values are determined on a lease-by-lease basis based on the present value (using an interest rate that reflects the risk associated
with the leases acquired) of the difference between (a) the contractual amounts to be paid under the lease and (b) management’s estimate of the fair market lease rate for the
corresponding space over the remaining non-cancellable terms of the related leases. Above (below) market lease values are recorded as leasehold intangibles and are
recognized as an increase or decrease in rental income over the remaining non-cancellable term of the lease. Amortization relating to above (below) market leases for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $227,687 and $153,952, respectively, and was recorded as a reduction to rental revenues.

In-place leases are valued based on the net rents earned that would have been foregone during an assumed lease-up period. Lease-up costs are valued based upon avoided
brokerage fees. In-place leases and lease-up costs are amortized over the remaining non-cancellable term of the leases. The Company has not recognized any value
attributable to customer relationships.

Management utilizes independent third parties to assist with the determination of fair value of the various tangible and intangible assets that are acquired. The difference
between the total of the calculated values described above, and the actual purchase price plus acquisition costs, is allocated pro-rata to each component of calculated value.

The Company capitalizes pre-development costs incurred in pursuit of new development opportunities for which the future development is probable. For properties under
development or redevelopment, the Company capitalizes interest expense, real estate taxes and direct and indirect project costs associated with the development and
redevelopment activities. With respect to the capitalization of interest expense, if there is a specific borrowing for the property undergoing development activities, the
Company applies the interest rate of that borrowing to the average accumulated expenditures that do not exceed such borrowing. If there are no specific borrowings, the
Company applies its weighted average interest rate on its senior secured revolving credit facility to the average accumulated expenditures. The Company capitalizes costs
while development activities are underway until the building is substantially complete and ready for its intended use, at which time rental income recognition commences
and rental operating costs, real estate taxes, insurance, and other subsequent carrying costs are expensed as incurred.
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Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and is calculated using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life. Range of useful lives for
depreciable assets are as follows:

Category Term

Buildings 40 years

Building and site improvements 5 - 40 years

Tenant improvements Shorter of remaining life of the lease or useful life

Tenant Improvements - As part of the leasing process, the Company may provide the lessee with an allowance for the construction of leasehold improvements. These
leasehold improvements are capitalized and recorded as tenant improvements and depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the improvements or the remaining lease
term. If the allowance represents a payment for a purpose other than funding leasehold improvements, or in the event the Company is not considered the owner of the
improvements, the allowance is considered to be a lease incentive and is recognized over the lease term as a reduction of rental revenue. Factors considered during this
evaluation include, among other things, who holds legal title to the improvements as well as other controlling rights provided by the lease agreement and provisions for
substantiation of such costs (e.g., unilateral control of the tenant space during the build-out process). Determination of the appropriate accounting for the payment of a
tenant allowance is made on a lease-by-lease basis, considering the facts and circumstances of the individual tenant lease.

Leases - The Company’s real estate is leased to tenants on a modified gross lease basis. The leases provide for a minimum rent which is generally flat during the non-
cancellable term of the lease and includes a reimbursement for certain operating costs of the property. The operating cost reimbursement is established at lease
commencement and is subject to annual adjustment based on changes in the consumer price index. Operating expenses include repairs and maintenance, cleaning,
landscaping and utilities. The lessee is also required by the lease to reimburse the Company for real estate taxes over the real estate tax base year. The real estate tax base
year is established as the real estate taxes incurred during the first full tax year after lease commencement or otherwise as defined in the lease. In some cases, the leases
provide the tenant with renewal options, subject to generally the same terms and conditions of the base term of the lease. The Company accounts for its leases using the
operating method.

Operating method — Properties with leases accounted for using the operating method are recorded at the cost of the real estate. Revenue is recognized as rentals are earned
and expenses (including depreciation and amortization) are charged to operations as incurred. Buildings are depreciated on the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. Tenant improvements and leasehold intangibles are amortized on the straight-line method over the terms of their respective leases. When scheduled rentals
vary during the lease term, income is recognized on a straight-line basis so as to produce a constant periodic rent over the term of the lease.

Impairment — Real Estate - The Company reviews investments in real estate for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. To determine if impairment may exist, the Company reviews its properties and identifies those that have experienced either a change or
an event or circumstance warranting further assessment of recoverability (such as a decrease in occupancy). If further assessment of recoverability is needed, the Company
estimates the future net cash flows expected to result from the use of the property and its eventual disposition, on an individual property basis. If the sum of the expected
future net cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than the carrying amount of the property on an individual property basis, the Company will
recognize an impairment loss based upon the estimated fair value of such property. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company did not recognize any
impairment charges.
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Organizational, Offering and Related Costs - Organizational and offering costs of the Company are presented as a reduction of stockholders’ equity within the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity. Organizational and offering costs represent expenses incurred in connection
with the formation of the Company and the filing of the Company’s securities offering pursuant to Regulation A.

Revenue Recognition - Revenue includes base rent due from tenants in accordance with the terms of the respective lease. The Company recognizes rental income on a
straight-line basis over the non-cancellable term of the respective lease. Revenue also includes reimbursement income from the recovery of all or a portion of operating
expenses and real estate taxes and is recognized in the same periods as the related expenses are incurred. For newly acquired properties, the Company begins to recognize
rental income from leases concurrently with the date of the property acquisition closing. Revenue also includes the amortization or accretion of acquired above (below)
market leases over the remaining non-cancellable term of the lease.

Rents and Other Tenant Receivables, net - Rents and other tenant receivables represent amounts billed and due from tenants. When a portion of the tenants’ receivable is
estimated to be uncollectible, an allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded. Due to the high credit-worthiness of the tenants, there were no allowances as of December
31,2021 and 2020. The Company had a straight-line rent receivable of $82,000 and $38,200 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Income Taxes— The REIT has elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code and applicable Treasury regulations relating to REIT qualification
beginning with its fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. In order to maintain this REIT status, the regulations require the REIT to distribute at least 90% of its taxable
income to stockholders and meet certain other asset and income tests, as well as other requirements. If the REIT fails to qualify as a REIT, it will be subject to tax at
regular corporate rates for the years in which it fails to qualify. If the REIT loses its REIT status, it cannot elect to be taxed as a REIT for the four taxable years following
the year it loses its REIT status unless the REIT’s failure to qualify was due to reasonable cause and certain other conditions were satisfied.

Management analyzes the Company’s tax filing positions in the U.S. federal, state and local jurisdictions where the Company is required to file income tax returns for all
open tax years. If, based on this analysis, management determines that uncertainties in tax positions exist, a liability is established along with an estimate for interest and
penalty. Management has determined that there were no uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2021 and 2020; accordingly, no associated interest and penalties were
required to be accrued at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Noncontrolling Interest - Noncontrolling interest represents the common units in the Operating Partnership not attributable to the REIT. The noncontrolling interest is
calculated by multiplying the noncontrolling interest ownership percentage at the balance sheet date by the Operating Partnership’s outstanding common equity. The
noncontrolling interest ownership percentage is calculated by dividing the Operating Partnership common units not owned by the REIT by the total Operating Partnership
common units outstanding. The noncontrolling interest ownership percentage will change as additional common units are issued or as common units are exchanged for the
REIT’s common stock. Subsequent changes in the noncontrolling interest value are recorded to additional paid-in capital. Accordingly, the value of the noncontrolling
interest is included in the equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets but presented separately from the REIT’s equity. The REIT’s noncontrolling interest was
45.8% and 44.1% at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Deferred Costs — Deferred financing fees include costs incurred in obtaining debt. For debt other than a line-of credit arrangement, deferred financing fees are capitalized
and presented as a direct reduction from the carrying amount of the associated debt liability within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Deferred financing fees related to line-
of-credit arrangements are capitalized and presented as an asset within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Deferred financing fees are amortized through interest expense
over the life of the respective loans on a basis which approximates the effective interest method for debt other than a line-of credit arrangement or straight-line over the
contractual term of the arrangement for a line-of-credit arrangement. Any unamortized amounts upon early repayment of debt are written off in the period of repayment as



a loss on extinguishment of debt.
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The Company capitalizes certain legal, accounting and other third-party fees that are directly associated with in-process equity financings as deferred offering costs until
such financings are consummated. In the event an equity financing is no longer considered probable of being consummated, all deferred offering costs are written off in the



period such determination is made. For equity financings classified as equity, deferred offering costs are recorded in stockholders’ equity as a reduction of additional
paid-in capital against the offering proceeds. For equity financings required to be classified as a liability, these costs are capitalized and presented as a direct reduction
from the gross proceeds from the equity financing within the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Deferred Revenue — Deferred revenue primarily consists of lump sum reimbursements made by tenants to the Company for landlord improvements in excess of a tenant
improvement allowance. Lump sum reimbursements are recorded as deferred revenue on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are amortized over the non-cancellable lease
term through revenue.

Stock Based Compensation — The Company grants equity-based compensation awards to its officers, employees and non-employee directors in the form of restricted
shares of common stock and long-term incentive plan units in the Operating Partnership (“LTIP Units”). The Company recognizes compensation expense for non-vested
restricted shares of common stock and LTIP Units granted to officers, employees and non-employee directors on a straight-line basis over the requisite service and/or
performance period based upon the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant. Forfeitures are recognized as they occur.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share - Basic earnings (loss) per share is based on the weighted effect of all common shares issued and outstanding and is calculated by dividing net
income (loss) available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is
calculated by dividing net income (loss) available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares used in the basic earnings (loss) per share
calculation plus the number of common shares, if any, that would be issued assuming conversion of all potentially dilutive securities outstanding.

The following securities were not included in the computation of the Company’s diluted loss per share as their effect would be anti-dilutive.

As of December 31,

2021 2020
Potentially dilutive securities outstanding
Convertible common units 1,118,416 1,118,416
Convertible long-term incentive plan units 209,631 112,408
Convertible preferred stock 2,620,473 2,345,747
Total potentially dilutive securities 3,948,520 3,576,571

Smaller Reporting Company Disclosure Requirements - The Company has adopted reporting standards and disclosure requirements as a “smaller reporting company” as
defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Item 10(f) of Regulation S-K, as amended. These
rules provide scaled disclosure accommodations, the purpose of which is to provide general regulatory relief to qualifying entities.
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Revisions to Financial Statements

In December 2021, the Company’s management identified certain errors made with respect to the Company’s historical consolidated financial statements beginning with
the period from May 26, 2017 (the date of the contribution transaction between Holmwood Capital, LLC (“Holmwood”) and the Operating Partnership) to December 31,
2020. In its capacity as the general partner of the Operating Partnership, the REIT incurs various operating costs and general administrative expenses on behalf of and for
the benefit of the Operating Partnership. The Agreement of Limited Partnership, as amended, of the Operating Partnership requires that the Operating Partnership
reimburse the general partner for all of its operating costs and general administrative expenses. Prior to 2021, the reimbursement of the REIT’s operating costs and general
administrative expenses were not appropriately reflected as expenses of or reimbursements from the Operating Partnership. The Company has evaluated the materiality of
these errors based on an analysis of quantitative and qualitative factors and does not believe such errors had a material impact on an investor’s understanding of the
Company’s historical consolidated financial condition or results of operations. The Company has revised its consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to correct such errors. Accordingly, the net loss attributed to the REIT available to common shareholders was overstated and the net loss attributable to
noncontrolling interest in the Operating Partnership was understated. In addition, additional paid-in capital and accumulated deficit of the REIT was understated and
noncontrolling interest in the Operating Partnership was overstated. There was no impact on the consolidated net loss, total equity or cash flows of the Company. The
effects of such revisions are as follows:

Noncontrolling
Preferred  Common  Additional Total Interest in
Stock Stock Paid- Offering Accumulated Cumulative Stockholders' Operating Total
Par Value  Par Value in Capital Costs Deficit Dividends Equity Partnership Equity
Balance, December
31,2019
(previously
reported) $ 1,324 $ 1,438 $24,463,133  $(1,459,479) $ (9,324,626) $(3,478,926) $ 10,202,864 $ 4,752,606  $14,955,470
Allocation of
NCI in operating
partnership
adjustment - - 1,337,415 - - - 1,337,415 (1,337,415) -
Net loss
adjustment - - - - 3,621,764 - 3,621,764 (3,621,764) -
Balance, December 1,324 1,438 25,800,548 (1,459,479) (5,702,862)  (3,478,926) 15,162,043 (206,573) 14,955,470

31,2019 (revised)




Balance, December
31,2020
(previously
reported)
Allocation of
NCI in operating
partnership
(2019
adjustment)
Net loss (2019
adjustment)
Balance, December
31, 2020 (prior to
2020 adjustments)
Allocation of
NCI in operating
partnership
(2020
adjustment)
Net loss (2020
adjustment)
Balance, December
31,2020 (revised)

Noncontrolling

For the year ended December 31, 2020

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Net loss

Preferred stock dividends

Basic and diluted loss per share

Preferred Common Additional Total Interest in
Stock Stock Paid- Offering Accumulated Cumulative Stockholders' Operating Total
Par Value  Par Value in Capital Costs Deficit Dividends Equity Partnership Equity

2,081 1,561 30,751,943 (1,271,266) (13,092,046)  (6,143,463) 10,248,810 2,242,990 12,491,800

- - 1,337,415 - - - 1,337,415 (1,337,415) -

- - - - 3,621,764 - 3,621,764 (3,621,764) -

2,081 1,561 32,089,358 (1,271,266) (9,470,282)  (6,143,463) 15,207,989 (2,716,189) 12,491,800

- - 502,109 - - - 502,109 (502,109) -

- - - - 653,061 - 653,061 (653,061) -

$ 2,081 $ 1,561 $32,591,467 $(1,271,266) $ (8,817,221) $(6,143,463) $ 16,363,159 §$§  (3,871,359) $12,491,800

(Previously
Reported) (Revised)
December 31, December 31,
2020 Adjustments 2020

$ (6,924,575) $ - 8 (6,924,575)
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest in operating partnership (3,157,155) (653,061) (3,810,216)
Net loss attributed to HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. (3,767,420) 653,061 (3,114,359)
(1,819,191) - (1,819,191)
Net loss attributed to HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. available to common shareholders $ (5,586,611) $ 653,061 $ (4,933,550)
$ (3.67) § 043 § (3.24)

1,523,719 1,523,719 1,523,719

Basic and diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted - In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842)
(“ASU 2016-02”). ASU 2016-02 requires lessees to apply a dual approach, classifying leases as either finance or operating leases based on the principle of whether or not
the lease is effectively a financed purchase of the leased asset by the lessee. This classification will determine whether the lease expense is recognized based on an effective
interest method or on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. A lessee is also required to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases with a term of
greater than 12 months regardless of their classification. Leases with a term of 12 months or less will be accounted for in the same manner as operating leases today. As of
December 31, 2021, the Company has a ground lease on its property located in Cape Canaveral, Florida expiring in 2045 and two parking lot leases in connection with its
property located in San Antonio, Texas expiring in 2025. See Note 13.Commitments and Contingencies for more information regarding the Company’s operating leases.

The new standard requires lessors to account for leases using an approach that is substantially equivalent to existing guidance for sales-type leases, direct financing leases
and operating leases. In connection with the new revenue guidance, the new revenue standard will apply to other components of revenue deemed to be non-lease
components, such as reimbursement for certain expenses which are based off of usage. Under the new guidance, the Company will continue to recognize the lease
components of lease revenue on a straight-line basis over our respective lease terms as is currently done under prior guidance. However, the Company will recognize these
non-lease components under the new revenue guidance as the related services are delivered. As a result, while the total revenue recognized over time will be consistent
under the new guidance, the timing of revenue recognition may differ. This does not result in a difference from how the Company has historically recognized revenue for
these lease and non-lease components.

The leasing standard will be effective for the Company for the year ending December 31, 2022. A modified retrospective approach must be applied. The Company has
elected to apply the package of practical expedients not to reassess all of its leases that had commenced as of January 1, 2022 (including those for which the entity is a
lessee or a lessor). Application of the guidance will result in recording a right-of-use asset and lease liability of approximately $1,260,000 for the Company’s three leases
for which it is the lessee. Lease expense will be recognized on a straight-line basis.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standard-setting bodies are not currently applicable to the Company or are not
expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Variable Interest Entities
With respect to the three SPEs where Holmwood assigned to the Operating Partnership all its rights, title and interest in and to any and all profits, losses and distributed
cash flow, management determined these SPEs to be variable interest entities (“VIE”) in which the Operating Partnership has a variable interest and that Holmwood equity
holders lacked the characteristics of a controlling financial interest. The Company determined in accordance with FASB ASU No 2018-17 “Consolidation” (Topic 810) to

consolidate these SPEs.

A summary of the VIE’s assets and liabilities that are included within the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Assets:
Buildings and improvements, net $ 10,467,017 $ 10,842,846
Intangible assets, net 20,332 128,130
Prepaids and other assets 426,630 418,292
Total assets $ 10913979 § 11,389,268
Liabilities:
Mortages payable, net $ 9,084,697 $ 9,277,699
Intangible liabilities, net 1,310 33,053
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 175,724 176,964

Total liabilities $ 9,261,731 § 9,481,716




Net identifiable assets $ 1,652,248 $ 1,901,552
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4.

Investment in Real Estate

The following is a summary of the Company’s investment in real estate, net as of December 31, 2021 and 2020:



December 31, December 31,

2021 2020

Land § 14647342 $ 12,701,648
Buildings and improvements 101,566,681 93,743,401
Site improvements 2,103,738 1,463,473
Tenant improvements 14,296,765 10,338,157
Construction in progress 839,498 1,545,104
133,454,024 119,791,783

Accumulated depreciation (15,037,573) (10,725,687)
Investment in real estate, net $ 118,416,451 § 109,066,096

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $4,311,886 and $3,746,050, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company acquired two operating properties. These properties were acquired with leases in place with the United States of
America. The following is a summary of the property location, acquisition date, rentable square feet and the remaining non-cancellable lease term at the time of
acquisition:

Remaining
Non-
Cancellable
Lease Term
Acquisition Rentable at
Acquisition
Location Date Sq Ft Date
Van Buren, Missouri 06/14/2021 16,000 8.6 years
Houston, Texas 09/10/2021 21,019 8.5 years

On September 28, 2021, the Company acquired one property that is under development in Boise, Idaho with a lease in place with the United States of America. Upon
completion of the development project, the 15-year non-cancellable lease will commence. The project is expected to be completed in December 2022.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company acquired three operating properties. These properties were acquired with leases in place with the United States of
America. The following is a summary of the property location, acquisition date, rentable square feet and the remaining non-cancellable lease term at the time of
acquisition:

Remaining
Non-
Cancellable
Lease Term
Acquisition Rentable at
Acquisition
Location Date Sq Ft Date
Birmingham, Alabama 04/30/2020 12,470 14.5 years
Columbia, South Carolina 09/22/2020 19,368 9.9 years
Lakewood, Washington 12/17/2020 9,567 8.2 years

Pursuant to a purchase and sale agreement dated October 6, 2020 and further with respect to our Lakewood, Washington property, the Company funded an additional
$323,000 into an escrow account at closing in connection with a potential purchase price adjustment pending the resolution of certain lease provisions. Upon resolution of
the lease provisions, all or a portion of the escrow amount shall be released to the seller and any balance shall be released to the Company. As of December 31, 2021 and
2020, the $323,000 escrow amount is recorded in prepaid expenses and other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

On October 16, 2020, the Company acquired one property that is under development in Portland, Maine with a lease in place with the United States of America. The
project was completed in June 2021 and the 10-year non-cancellable lease term commenced.
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A summary of the allocated purchase price, based on estimated fair values, for the acquisitions completed during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as
follows:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Land $ 1,945,694 $ 2,609,628
Buildings and improvements 5,343,224 10,012,672
Tenant improvements 1,126,788 1,648,196
Site improvements 553,194 -
Construction in progress 729,059 765,137
Acquired in-place leases 1,889,157 1,879,736
Acquired lease-up costs 701,380 924,708
Above market leases 60,673 713,863
Below market leases (75,495) -
Total $ 12,273,674 $ 18,553,940

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company included $383,802 of revenues and $66,137 of net loss in our Consolidated Statements of Operations related to
the operating properties acquired in 2021. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company included $502,894 of revenues and $130,826 of net income in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations related to the operating properties acquired in 2020.

The intangible assets and liabilities of the acquired properties have an aggregate weighted average amortization period of 8.1 years and 9.9 years as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

Leasehold Intangibles, net
The following is a summary of the Company’s leasehold intangibles as of December 31, 2021 and 2020:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Acquired in-place leases $ 9,023,323 $ 7,134,166
Acquired lease-up costs 5,434,516 4,733,136
Acquired above-market leases 3,907,707 3,847,034
18,365,546 15,714,336
Accumulated amortization (6,451,230) (4,482,571)
Leasehold intangibles, net $ 11914316 § 11,231,765

Amortization of in-place leases and lease-up costs was $1,529,037 and $1,249,864 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Amortization of acquired above market leases resulted in a reduction to rental revenue of $439,622 and $355,708 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.
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Future amortization of acquired in-place lease value, acquired lease-up costs and acquired above market leases as of December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Intangible

Year Ended Lease Costs
2022 $ 1,922,326
2023 1,692,318
2024 1,617,705
2025 1,530,288
2026 1,521,797
Thereafter 3,629,882
Total $ 11,914,316

The weighted-average amortization period is approximately 7.5 years.
Below-Market Leases, net

The Company’s intangible liabilities consist of acquired below-market leases. The following is a summary of the Company’s intangible liabilities as of December 31, 2021
and 2020:

December 31, December 31,

2021 2020
Acquired below-market leases $ 1,316,913 § 1,241,418
Accumulated amortization (901,594) (689,659)
Below-market leases, net $ 415319 $ 551,759

Amortization of below-market leases resulted in an increase in rental revenue of $211,935 and $201,756 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The future amortization of acquired below market leases as of December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Below Market
Year Ended Leases
2022 $ 206,986
2023 126,126
2024 71,485
2025 3,020
2026 3,020
Thereafter 4,682
Total $ 415,319

The weighted-average amortization period is approximately 2.4 years.
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Debt

The following table summarizes the Company’s outstanding indebtedness as of December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Interest Principal Outstanding
December 31, December 31,
Loan Rate Maturity 2021 2020
Senior revolving credit facility:
Senior revolving credit facility December
L+ 170bps 2025 $ 29,000,000 $ 15,650,000
Total senior revolving credit facility 29,000,000 15,650,000
Mortgage notes payable
Lorain, Ohio, Jonesboro, Arkansas and Port Saint Lucie, Florida 5.265% August 2023 9,142,867 9,368,605
Total mortgage notes payable 9,142,867 9,368,605
Less: Total unamortizd debt issurance costs (58,170) (90,906)
Total mortgage payable, net 9,084,697 9,277,699
Total debt $ 38,084,697 $ 24,927,699

Revolving Credit Facility

In December 2021, the Company, through its Operating Partnership, amended and restated its senior revolving credit facility (as amended, the “Credit Facility”) with
KeyBanc Capital Markets, Inc., as sole bookrunner and lead arranger, and KeyBank National Association, as syndication agent and administrative agent. The Credit
Facility has total availability of up to $100,000,000, subject to customary terms and availability conditions. The Credit Facility includes an accordion feature that will
permit the Operating Partnership to further increase the commitments available to the Operating Partnership to up to $200,000,000, subject to customary terms and
conditions. The Company intends to use the Credit Facility to repay certain indebtedness, fund acquisitions and capital expenditures and provide working capital.

The Company and its subsidiaries that directly own properties included in the Credit Facility’s borrowing base are guarantors under the Credit Facility. The Credit Facility
matures on December 3, 2025 with a one-time option to extend the maturity date until December 3, 2026, subject to certain conditions and the payment of an extension fee.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility are subject to an interest rate which equals, at the Company’s option, either (i) a base rate plus an applicable margin with a range of
70 to 140 basis points or (ii) LIBOR plus an applicable margin with a range of 170 to 240 basis points, with the applicable margin depending on the Company’s
consolidated leverage ratio. In addition, the Company will pay an unused facility fee on the revolving commitments under the Credit Facility of 0.25% per annum.

The Credit Facility also contains certain customary financial covenants, as follows: (i) the maximum ratio of consolidated total indebtedness to total asset value (each as
defined in the credit agreement) may not exceed 60.0%, (ii) the minimum ratio of adjusted consolidated EBITDA to consolidated fixed charges (each as defined in the
credit agreement) may not be less than (A) 1.00 to 1.00 through the fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2022 and (B) 1.25 to 1.00 for each fiscal quarter ending on and
after December 31, 2022, (iii) the minimum ratio of adjusted consolidated EBITDA to consolidated total indebtedness (each as defined in the credit agreement) may not be
less than 12%, (iv) the minimum total liquidity (as defined in the credit agreement) may not be less than $15,000,000, and (v) the minimum consolidated tangible net worth
(as defined in the credit agreement) may not be less than the sum of an amount equal to 85.0% of consolidated tangible net worth as of the closing date of the Credit
Facility plus an amount equal to 85.0% of the aggregate net proceeds received from subsequent issuances of the Company’s stock after the closing date of the Credit
Facility.

The Credit Facility also includes other customary covenants, including limits on the percentage of the Company’s total asset value that may be invested in unimproved
land, unconsolidated joint ventures, redevelopment and development assets and loans, advances or extensions of credit, and requires that the Company obtain consent for
mergers in which the Company is not the surviving entity. The Company’s dividends and distributions are not permitted to exceed 95% of funds from operations (as
defined in the credit agreement) commencing with the fiscal quarter ending June 30, 2023.

These financial and restrictive covenants may limit the investments the Company may make and the Company’s ability to make dividends and distributions. As of
December 31, 2021, the Company is in compliance with all financial and restrictive covenants under the Credit Facility. The occurrence of an event of default under the
Credit Facility could result in the termination of the commitments thereunder and in all loans and other obligations becoming immediately due and payable.
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As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had $29,000,000 and $15,650,000 outstanding and approximately $71,000,000 and $84,350,000 committed and



undrawn under the Credit Facility, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had approximately $50,680,000 of availability for borrowing under the Credit
Facility. The weighted average interest rate on the outstanding borrowings was 1.81% and 2.16% as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The fair value of the
Credit Facility approximates its carrying value.

Mezzanine Debt

On August 14, 2020, the Company used a portion of the net proceeds from the Series C Offering (as defined below) to repay an aggregate amount of $21,846,295 of the
Company’s mezzanine debt outstanding, including accrued interest and make-whole payments. The make whole premium is classified as a loss on extinguishment of debt
on the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2020.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had no mezzanine debt outstanding.

Mortgage Notes Payable

The Company’s fixed rate mortgage notes payable balances, excluding unamortized debt issuance costs, were $9,142,867 and $9,368,605 as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively. There were no variable rate mortgage notes payable as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had unamortized debt issuance costs of $58,170 and $90,906, respectively, in connection with its mortgage notes
payables.

The mortgage notes payable are collateralized by the specific properties to which the mortgage notes payable pertain. The carrying amount of real estate that serves as
collateral for these mortgages as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $10,467,017 and $10,842,846, respectively.

The following table summarizes the Company’s aggregate debt maturities based on outstanding principal as of December 31, 2021:

Future

Principal

Year Ended Payments
2022 $ 238,087
2023 8,904,780
2024 -
2025 29,000,000
Total $ 38,142,867

Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Stock

On August 14, 2020, the Company completed the sale and issuance of 3,600,000 shares of the Company’s 7.00% Series C Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (the
“Series C Preferred Stock”) at $25.00 per share to qualified investors in a private offering pursuant to exemptions from registration provided by Section 4(a)(2) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Regulation D promulgated thereunder, for an aggregate purchase price of $90,000,000 (the “Series C Offering”). Net proceeds
from the Series C Offering were $86,521,914, after deducting the placement agent fee and legal and other professional fees paid in connection with the Series C Offering,
and are presented on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as mandatorily redeemable preferred stock, net of unamortized deferred offering costs.
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The Company used the net proceeds from the Series C Offering primarily to acquire new GSA Properties, repay a portion of the indebtedness outstanding under the Credit
Facility, fully repay the Company’s mezzanine debt, purchase existing shares of the Company’s 7.00% Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series A
Preferred Stock”) and for general corporate purposes.

The Series C Preferred Stock has an aggregate liquidation preference of $90,000,000, plus any accrued and unpaid dividends thereon. The Series C Preferred Stock is
senior to the Company’s common stock, Series A Preferred Stock and 10.00% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series B Preferred Stock™) and any class
or series of capital stock expressly designated as ranking junior to the Series C Preferred Stock as to distribution rights and rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding
up. The Series C Preferred Stock ranks on a parity with any class or series of the Company’s capital stock expressly designated as ranking on a parity with the Series C
Preferred Stock as to distribution rights and rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

The Series C Preferred Stock is mandatorily redeemable by the Company on August 14, 2027 (“Mandatory Redemption Date™) at a redemption price equal to the $25.00
liquidation preference per share, plus the amount of any accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series C Preferred Stock. The Series C Preferred Stock is not redeemable
prior to August 14, 2023 except (i) in order to preserve the REIT’s qualification as a REIT, (ii) within 120 days after the date on which a Change of Control (as defined in
the Articles Supplementary classifying and designating the Series C Preferred Stock) occurs and (iii) at any time that the aggregate distributions to the holders of Series C
Preferred Stock result in a multiple on invested capital equal to the $25.00 liquidation preference per share plus the product of (x) the dividend rate of 7.00% per annum of
the $25.00 liquidation preference per share and (y) three.

The Company may, at its option, redeem the Series C Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, at any time on or after August 14, 2023 at a redemption price equal to $25.00 per
share, plus the amount of any accrued and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared).

Holders of the Series C Preferred Stock generally have no voting rights. However, the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the outstanding shares of the Series C
Preferred Stock (voting as a separate class) is required to amend the Company’s charter (including the Articles Supplementary classifying and designating the Series C
Preferred Stock) in a manner that materially and adversely affects the rights of the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock

If the Company fails to redeem the Series C Preferred Stock by the Mandatory Redemption Date, and such non-compliance remains uncured by the Company on the nine-
month anniversary following the Mandatory Redemption Date (a “Failed Redemption™), holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall
have the right at any time after such date to elect a majority of the members of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”). The number of directors will be
automatically increased to such number as is necessary to enable the holders of Series C Preferred Stock to exercise such right. If, at any time following a Failed
Redemption, the Company completes the redemption, the terms of any and all directors elected by the holders of Series C Preferred Stock will automatically expire
immediately following such redemption and the number of directors will be automatically decreased by a corresponding number.

In accordance with FASB ASU No. 2017-11, “Distinguishing Liability from Equity” (Topic 480), the Company has classified the Series C Preferred Stock as a liability as
it has characteristics that require liability classification. The Series C Preferred Stock is presented as mandatorily redeemable preferred stock, net of unamortized deferred
offering costs, on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. Further, the related dividend payments are recorded as a component of interest expense in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Series C Preferred Stock is entitled to a dividend of 7.00% per annum, accruing from the date of issuance, on a cumulative basis, quarterly in arrears. Dividends

continue to accrue even if not authorized, declared or paid. As of both December 31, 2021 and 2020, accrued, unpaid preferred stock dividends on the Company’s Series
C Preferred Stock were $1,575,000 reported in declared dividends and distributions on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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The Company incurred $3,478,086 in placement agent fees and legal and other professional fees related to the Series C Offering. These costs are recorded as deferred
offering costs on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the mandatorily redeemable preferred stock liability and are being
amortized using the effective interest method over the mandatory redemption period.
As of both December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had 3,600,000 shares of the Series C Preferred Stock issued and outstanding.
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company amortized $401,907 and $145,372, respectively, of deferred offering costs related to the Series C
Preferred Stock in interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Accumulated amortization of the deferred offering costs was $547,279 and $145,372 as
of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

9. Related Parties
Preferred Stock

In April 2020, the Company issued a total of 350,000 shares of its Series B Preferred Stock to HG Holdings, Inc. for total proceeds of $3,500,000, to partially finance the
acquisition of the property located in Birmingham, Alabama.

In June 2020, the Company issued 475,000 shares of its Series B Preferred Stock to HG Holdings, Inc. for total proceeds of $4,750,000, to partially finance the acquisition
of the property located in Columbia, South Carolina.

In December 2020, the Company issued 45,000 shares of its Series B Preferred Stock to an investor affiliated with HPCM for total proceeds of $450,000, to partially fund
the development project of the property located in Portland, Maine.

In September 2021, the Company issued 250,000 shares of its Series B Preferred Stock to an investor affiliated with HPCM for total proceeds of $2,500,000, to partially
fund the development of the property located in Boise, Idaho.

Mezzanine Debt
On August 14, 2020, the Company used a portion of the net proceeds from the Series C Offering to repay all of its outstanding mezzanine debt.
10.  Leases and Tenants
Our rental properties are subject to generally non-cancellable operating leases generating future minimum contractual rent payments due from tenants. Occupancy of the

operating properties was at 98% at December 31, 2021 and 2020. Remaining non-cancellable lease terms range from 0.3 to 15.0 years as of December 31, 2021. The future
minimum rents for existing leases as of December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Future
Minimum

Year Ended Rents
2022 $ 12,742,259
2023 11,150,646
2024 10,074,874
2025 9,199,214
2026 9,162,124
Thereafter 28,661,933
Total $ 80,991,050

The properties are 98% leased to the United States of America and administered by either the GSA or the occupying agency. At December 31, 2021, the weighted average
lease term was 4.9 years if the GSA elects to exercise all of its early termination rights and 8.8 years if none of the early termination rights are exercised by the GSA. Non-
cancellable lease maturities range from 2022 to 2037.

32




11.

Stockholders’ Equity
Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

In 2016, the Company issued 144,500 shares of its Series A Preferred Stock to various investors in exchange for a total of $3,612,500, or $25.00 per share. The Series A
Preferred Stock will automatically convert into common stock upon the occurrence of the Company’s listing on a national securities exchange. As the listing event did not
occur on or prior to March 31, 2020, holders of the Series A Preferred Stock may, at their option, at any time and from time to time after such date, convert all, but not less
than all, of their outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock into common stock. The shares of Series A Preferred Stock are convertible into common shares in
accordance with the following formula:

Conversion Amount = (($25.00*X) + X5)/$10.00) + 0.2*(($25.00%X;)/$10.00)
where:

“X1” means the number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by the applicable holder; and
“X5” means the aggregate accrued but unpaid dividends on the holder’s shares of Series A Preferred Stock as of the applicable conversion date.

On August 21, 2020, the Company offered to repurchase all of its outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock for $25.00 per share (the “Repurchase Price”), using a
portion of the net proceeds from the Series C Offering (the “Series A Repurchase Offer”). The Repurchase Price was equal to the liquidation preference per share of Series
A Preferred Stock. The Series A Repurchase Offer expired on September 11, 2020. The Series A Repurchase Offer was designed to provide liquidity to holders of the
Company’s Series A Preferred Stock, for which there is no public market, and to lower the Company’s costs of operations. The Company repurchased 113,500 shares of
Series A Preferred Stock for an aggregate repurchase price of $2,837,500. As of both December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were 31,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock
outstanding.

Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

On March 19, 2019, the Company issued 1,050,000 shares of its Series B Preferred Stock in exchange for total proceeds of $10,500,000, or $10.00 per share. The Series B
Preferred Stock will automatically convert into common stock upon the occurrence of the Company’s listing on a national securities exchange. As the listing event did not
occur on or prior to March 31, 2020, holders of the Series B Preferred Stock may, at their option, at any time and from time to time after such date, convert all, but not less
than all, of their outstanding shares of Series B Preferred Stock into common stock. Upon conversion, a holder of shares of Series B Preferred Stock will receive a number
of shares of common stock equal to the original issue price of the Series B Preferred Stock (plus any accrued and unpaid dividends) divided by the lesser of (i) $9.10 or (ii)
the fair market value of the common stock.

On September 20, 2021, the Company filed Articles Supplementary with the State Department of Assessments and Taxation of Maryland classifying and designating an
additional 1,600,000 authorized but unissued shares of Series B Preferred Stock. After giving effect to such Articles Supplementary, the total number of shares of Series B
Preferred Stock which the Company has authority to issue is 3,650,000.

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company issued a total of $2,500,000 and $8,700,000, respectively, of Series B Preferred Stock. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were 2,300,000 shares and 2,050,000 shares, respectively, of Series B Preferred Stock outstanding.
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Common Stock

On November 7, 2016, the Company’s offering statement on Form 1-A filed in connection with its securities offering pursuant to Regulation A (the “Regulation A
Offering”), was qualified by the SEC. The Regulation A Offering’s minimum and maximum offering amounts were $3,000,000 and $30,000,000, respectively, at an
offering price of $10.00 per share. The initial purchase of common stock with respect to the Regulation A Offering occurred on May 18, 2017. In November 2019, the
Regulation A Offering expired and the Company did not file a post-qualification amendment to extend the Regulation A Offering.

In connection with the former asset management agreement (the “Management Agreement”) with Holmwood Capital Advisors, LLC (“HCA”), the Company issued 55,674
shares of common stock to HCA for a total value of $556,739 in satisfaction of the Acquisition Fee (as defined below) due to HCA on March 31, 2020. Refer to Note 13.
Commitments and Contingencies for further discussion.

Further, in connection with the termination of the former Management Agreement, the Company issued 51,677 shares of common stock to HCA for a total value of
$370,453 on March 31, 2020. Refer to Note 13. Commitments and Contingencies for further discussion.

Equity-Based Stock Awards

On December 31, 2021, the Company granted an aggregate of 13,668 restricted shares of common stock to certain of its non-employee directors valued at $9.22 per share,
the estimate fair value per share of the Company’s common stock as of June 30, 2021. The shares pay dividends on the number of shares issued without regard to the
number of shares vested. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recognized $345 of equity-based compensation related to this grant. These shares will
become fully vested on December 31, 2022.

On December 21, 2020, the Company granted an aggregate of 9,004 restricted shares of common stock to certain of its non-employee directors valued at $9.33 per share,
the estimated net asset value per share of the Company’s common stock as of June 30, 2020. The shares pay dividends on the number of shares issued without regard to
the number of shares vested. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recognized $80,549 and $3,452 of equity-based compensation related to this
grant, respectively. These shares vested on December 21, 2021.

Operating Partnership Common Units (“OP Units”)

OP Units are a class of limited partnership interest in the Operating Partnership. Holders of OP Units have the right to require the Operating Partnership to redeem their OP
Units. The Operating Partnership has the discretion to redeem such OP Units for either (i) an amount of cash per OP Unit equal to the value of one share of the REIT’s
common stock, or (ii) shares of the REIT’s common stock at a 1:1 ratio.

As of both December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were 1,118,416 OP Units outstanding. The Company did not issue any OP Units during the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020. In addition, no OP Units were redeemed during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Long-Term Incentive Plan Units

LTIP Units are a special class of partnership interest in the Operating Partnership. Each LTIP Unit is convertible into an OP Unit of the Operating Partnership at a 1:1 ratio
which can then be further exchanged into shares of the REIT’s common stock at a 1:1 ratio. No LTIP Units were exchanged into OP Units or shares of common stock of
the REIT during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Pursuant to the Management Agreement, HCA was granted LTIP Units concurrent with each sale of the REIT’s common stock under the Regulation A Offering. The
Company granted a total of 72,215 LTIP Units to HCA at a fair value of $10.00 per share. The LTIP Units vested over five years unless the Company terminated the
Management Agreement with HCA, in which case, the vesting accelerated as of the termination date. Effective March 31, 2020, the Company terminated the Management
Agreement with HCA and HCA’s LTIP Units became fully vested. As such, the Company recognized the remaining equity-based compensation expense related to these
grants during the year ended December 31, 2020 in the amount of $363,501.
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On December 31, 2021, the Company granted an aggregate of 39,806 LTIP Units to certain officers and directors of the Company that vested immediately upon the grant
date. The fair value of each grant was $9.22 per share, the estimated fair value per share of the Company’s common stock as of June 30, 2021. For the year ended
December 31, 2021, the Company recognized $367,011 of equity-based compensation expense with respect to this grant.

On December 21, 2020, the Company granted an aggregate of 273,198 LTIP Units to certain officers and employees of the Company. Of the total 273,198 LTIP Units
granted, 40,193 LTIP Units vested immediately upon the grant date, 36,052 LTIP Units vest over two years and 196,953 LTIP Units vest over five years. The fair value of
each grant was $9.33 per share, the estimated net asset value per share of the Company’s common stock as of June 30, 2020. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, the Company recognized $533,665 and $391,139 of equity-based compensation expense with respect to these grants, respectively.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had granted a total of 378,706 and 345,413 LTIP Units, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, the Company recognized a total of $900,676 and $754,640 of equity-based compensation expense, respectively.

The remaining equity-based compensation expense to be recognized in future periods is approximately $1,563,000.
Dividends and Distributions

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the REIT declared dividends on its Series A Preferred Stock of $54,250 and $153,563, respectively. As of both
December 31, 2021 and 2020, accrued, unpaid preferred stock dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock were $13,563.

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the REIT declared dividends on its Series B Preferred Stock of $2,114,575 and $1,665,628, respectively. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, accrued, unpaid preferred stock dividends on the Series B Preferred Stock were $575,000 and $503,2438, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the REIT declared dividends on its Series C Preferred Stock of $6,300,000 and $2,414,880, respectively. As of both
December 31, 2021 and 2020, accrued, unpaid preferred stock dividends on the Series C Preferred Stock were $1,575,000.

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the REIT declared dividends on its common stock of $862,582 and $845,346, respectively. As of December 31,
2021 and 2020, accrued, unpaid common stock dividends were $215,800 and $216,419, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Operating Partnership declared distributions of $805,106 and $692,412 with respect to its OP Units and LTIP
Units. As of both December 31, 2021 and 2020, accrued, unpaid distributions were $201,276.

12. Noncontrolling Interest

The Company’s noncontrolling interest represents the portion of common units in the Company’s Operating Partnership not attributable to the Company. The Company’s
noncontrolling interest was 45.8% and 44.1% at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Holmwood and HCA owned an aggregate 39.7% and 41.2% of the noncontrolling interest in the Operating Partnership as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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13.

Commitments and Contingencies

The property located in Port Canaveral, Florida was purchased subject to a ground lease. The ground lease has an extended term of 30 years to 2045 with one 10-year
renewal option. The Company made ground lease payments of $77,937 during both the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Company has two parking lot leases in connection with its property located in San Antonio, Texas. These leases commenced on June 1, 2015 and have an initial term
of 10 years with two 5-year renewal options. The Company made payments of $18,000 on these leases during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The Company has an office lease for its corporate offices in Winston-Salem, North Carolina. The lease commenced on February 15, 2019 and has a term of 3 years. The
Company made payments of $24,000 on this lease during both the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The future minimum rent payments for these leases as of December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Future
Minimum

Year Ended Rents
2022 $ 98,872
2023 95,938
2024 95,938
2025 85,438
2026 77,938
Thereafter 1,475,824
Total $ 1,929,948

Management Fees

On March 14, 2019, the Company provided notice to HCA, pursuant to the resolution of the Board, that the Company elected to not renew the Management Agreement
with HCA under its terms, effective March 31, 2020 (“Non-Renewal Notice”). With respect to the Management Agreement, the Company had contracted with HCA to
provide asset management, acquisition and leasing services for the Company, subject to the direction and supervision of the Board.

Through March 31, 2020, HCA earned an asset management fee equal to 1.5% of the stockholders’ equity payable, subject to certain adjustments, in arrears and on a
quarterly basis. The Company incurred asset management fees of $128,906 for the year ended December 31, 2020. There were no outstanding asset management fees at
December 31, 2020.

Also pursuant to the Management Agreement, HCA earned a fee based on 1% of the acquisition cost (“Acquisition Fee”) of each real estate investment made by HCA on
behalf of the Company for services with respect to the identification of an investment, arrangement of the purchase, and coordination of closing. Such fee was payable in
common stock or other equity securities of the Company. HCA’s discretion to provide acquisition services following the Non-Renewal Notice was subject to approval by
the Board. No such Acquisition Fees were earned by HCA following the Non-Renewal Notice other than in connection with the Monroe, Louisiana Property, which, as of
the Non-Renewal Notice, was subject to a binding agreement to purchase previously executed by HCA.

Pursuant to the terms of the Management Agreement, the Acquisition Fee was to be accrued and unpaid until the earlier of the date on which the Company’s common stock

was initially listed with a national securities exchange or on March 31, 2020. On March 31, 2020, the Company issued to HCA 55,674 shares of common stock of the
Company, at a per share price of $10.00, in payment of the Acquisition Fee.
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In accordance with the terms of the Management Agreement, the Company was required to pay HCA a termination fee upon the effective date of the termination. The
termination fee was calculated as a multiple of the sum of the asset management fees, acquisition fees and leasing fees earned by HCA during the 24-month period ending
as of the most recently completed fiscal quarter prior to the effective date of the termination. The appropriate multiple is dependent on the stockholders’ equity, as defined
by the Management Agreement, of the Company at the time of termination. The Company had the option to pay the termination fee in cash, common stock, or with the
consent of HCA, other equity securities of the Company or Operating Partnership, including without limitation LTIP Units, or a combination thereof. On March 31, 2020,
the Management Agreement with HCA terminated. In connection with the termination, the Company paid HCA a total termination fee of $1,645,453. The termination fee
payable was satisfied with $1,275,000 in cash and $370,453 in shares of common stock of the Company at a per share price of $7.17 for a total of 51,667 shares.

The Company contracts with third party property managers to provide property management services at its properties. The third-party property management fee is due and
payable on a monthly basis at the beginning of each month. The Company incurred third party property management fees of $259,192 and $234,552 for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Accrued third party property management fees were $9,774 at December 31, 2020. There were no accrued third party
property management fees as of December 31, 2021.

Legal Proceedings

The Company can be party to or otherwise be involved in legal proceedings arising in the normal and ordinary course of business. Other than the following, we are not
aware of any proceeding, threatened or pending, against us which, if determined adversely, would have a material effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows
or financial position.

On May 14, 2020, HCA and Holmwood filed suit in the Delaware Chancery Court against the REIT and the Operating Partnership. The suit alleges that the Company: (1)
improperly calculated the termination fee and other amounts due to HCA under its Management Agreement with the Company; (2) improperly paid portions of the
termination fee and other amounts in common stock (as opposed to other common equity interests in the Company); (3) failed to repay loans allegedly made to the
Company by the plaintiffs; and, (4) improperly denied HCA powers granted by the Management Agreement to control the day-to-day business and affairs of the REIT and
the Operating Partnership. The suit also alleges that the Company cannot recoup certain expenses to which the Company claims entitlement. The Company intends to
vigorously defend against the claims and has brought counterclaims in the matter. Because the litigation is in its very early stages, at this time, the Company cannot
estimate the financial impact of the litigation on the Company, if any.

14.  Subsequent Events
The Company evaluates events that have occurred after the balance sheet date but before the consolidated financial statements are issued. Based upon the evaluation, the
Company did not identify any recognized or non-recognized subsequent events that would have required adjustment or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
other than listed below.

Dividends and Distributions

On January 5, 2022, the REIT and the Operating Partnership paid accrued common dividends, preferred dividends and distributions of $201,041, $2,163,563 and
$191,347, respectively.

On March 25, 2022, the Company declared a dividend on its Series A Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock, Series C Preferred Stock and common stock of $0.4375,
$0.25, $0.4375 and $0.1375 per share for stockholders of record on March 25, 2022, respectively. The aggregate dividend of $2,366,483 was paid on April 5, 2022.

On March 25, 2022, the Operating Partnership declared an aggregate distribution of $214,379 with respect to its OP Units and LTIP Units, representing $0.1375 per unit
for holders of record on March 25, 2022. The aggregate distribution was paid on or around April 8, 2022.
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Item 8. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of this annual report on Form 1-K:

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Articles of Incorporation of HC Government Realty Trust, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed
on June 15,2016

22 Articles Supplementary of HC Government Realty Trust, Inc.. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Company’s Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed
on June 15,2016

2.3 Articles Supplementary of HC Government Realty Trust, Inc.. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on
March 19, 2019

24 Articles Supplementary of HC Government Realty Trust, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on

= August 18. 2020

2.5*% Articles Supplementary of HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. increasing the number of authorized shares of the 10.00% Series B Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock of HC Government Realty Trust. Inc.

2.6 Amended and Restated Bylaws of HC Government Realty Trust, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U
filed on March 19, 2019

2.7* Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws of HC Government Realty Trust. Inc.

2.8 Certificate of Correction to the Articles Supplementary classifying and designating the 7.00% Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock of HC
Government Realty Trust, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.6 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 1-K filed on April 2, 2021

29 Certificate of Correction to the Articles Supplementary classifying and designating the 10.00% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock of HC
Government Realty Trust, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.7 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 1-K filed on April 2, 2021

4.1 Form of Subscription Agreement. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on December 21, 2017

4.2 Form of Series B Preferred Stock Subscription Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on
March 19, 2019

43 Form of Common Stock Subscription Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on March 19
2019

4.4 Form of Series C Preferred Stock Subscription Agreement. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on

e August 18. 2020

6.1 Agreement of Limited Partnership of HC Government Realty Holdings, L.P.. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.1 to the Company’s Offering Statement on
Form 1-A filed on June 15, 2016

6.2 First Amendment to the Agreement of Limited Partnership of HC Government Realty Holdings. L.P.. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.2 to the Company’s
Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on June 15,2016

6.3 Limited Liability Company Agreement of Holmwood Portfolio Holdings, LLC, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.3 to the Company’s Offering Statement on
Form 1-A filed on June 15. 2016

6.4 Contribution Agreement by and between Holmwood Capital, LLC and HC Government Realty Holdings, L.P.. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.4 to the
Company’s Pre-Qualification Amendment No. 2 to its Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on September 16, 2016

6.5 Form of Tax Protection Agreement by and between Holmwood Capital, LLC and HC Government Realty Holdings, L.P., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.5
to the Company’s Pre-Qualification Amendment No. 1 to its Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on July 29, 2016

6.6 Form of Registration Rights Agreement by and between Holmwood Capital. LLC and HC Government Realty Trust. Inc.. incorporated by reference to Exhibit
6.6 to the Company’s Pre-Qualification Amendment No. 4 to its Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on October 24, 2016

6.7 Form of Registration Rights Agreement by and between Holmwood Capital Advisors, LLC and HC Government Realty Trust, Inc., incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 6.7 to the Company’s Pre-Qualification Amendment No. 4 to its Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on October 24, 2016

6.8 Management Agreement by and among Holmwood Capital Advisors, LLC. HC Government Realty Trust. Inc. and HC Government Realty Holdings, L.P.,

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.8 to the Company’s Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on June 15, 2016
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex21.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex21.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex22.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex22.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495419002955/hcgrt_ex11.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495419002955/hcgrt_ex11.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495420009306/hcgr_ex21.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495420009306/hcgr_ex21.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495419002955/hcgrt_ex12.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495419002955/hcgrt_ex12.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495421003802/hcg_ex2-6.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495421003802/hcg_ex2-6.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495421003802/hcg_ex2-7.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495421003802/hcg_ex2-7.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495417011797/hcg_ex4-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495417011797/hcg_ex4-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495419002955/hcgrt_ex41.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495419002955/hcgrt_ex41.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495419002955/hcgrt_ex42.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495419002955/hcgrt_ex42.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495420009306/hcgr_ex41.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495420009306/hcgr_ex41.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex61.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex61.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex62.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex62.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex63.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex63.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495416002216/hcg_ex64.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495416002216/hcg_ex64.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495416001034/ex65.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495416001034/ex65.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495416003046/hcgr_ex66.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495416003046/hcgr_ex66.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495416003046/hcgr_ex67.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000165495416003046/hcgr_ex67.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex68.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1670010/000135448816007834/hcgr_ex68.htm
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Form of Independent Director Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.9 to the Company’s Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on June 15, 2016

Form of Independent Director Indemnification Agreement. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.10 to the Company’s Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on
June 15. 2016
E f Offi

t
Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on July 29, 2016
2016 HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.12 to the Company’s Pre-Qualification Amendment No. 4
to its Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on October 24, 2016
First Amendment to Contribution Agreement by and between Holmwood Capital, LLC and HC Government Realty Holdings. L.P.. dated as of June 10, 2016,

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.25 to the Company’s Pre-Qualification Amendment No. 2 to its Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on September 16.

2016

Second Amendment to Contribution Agreement by and between Holmwood Capital. LLC and HC Government Realty Holdings. L.P.. dated as of May 26, 2017,

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on June 2., 2017

First Amendment to 2016 HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.15 to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 1-K filed on April 2, 2021

Second Amendment to 2016 HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan

Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of HC Government Realty Holdings. L.P.. dated March 14, 2019. incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 6.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on March 19, 2019

Loan Agreement, dated March 19, 2019, by and between HC Government Holdings. L.P., the Lenders Party thereto and HCM Agency, LLC, as Collateral Agent,

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on March 19. 2019

Holding Company Guaranty Agreement, dated March 19, 2019. by HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. and Holmwood Portfolio Holdings, LLC for the benefit of
HCM Agency, LLC, as Collateral Agent and the Lenders, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on March

19,2019

Security and Pledge Agreement, dated March 19, 2019, by and among HC Government Realty Holdings, L.P.. Holmwood Portfolio Holdings, LLC., HC
Government Realty Trust, Inc., HCM Agency, LLC, as Collateral Agent and the Lenders. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.4 to the Company’s Current

Report on Form 1-U filed on March 19. 2019

Credit Agreement. dated December 3. 2021, by and among HC Government Realty Holdings. L.P., as Borrower, HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. Holmwood
Portfolio Holdings, LLC and certain subsidiaries of HC Government Realty Holdings. L.P.. as Guarantors, KeyBank National Association, as syndication agent
and administrative agent, KeyBanc Capital Markets. Inc., as sole bookrunner and lead arranger, and the lenders from time to time party thereto

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement, dated October 22. 2019, by and between HC Government Holdings, L.P., the Lenders Party thereto and HCM Agency.

as Collateral Agent. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.21 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 1-K filed on April 3, 2020

Third Amendment to the Agreement of Limited Partnership of HC Government Realty Holdings. L.P., dated August 12, 2020, incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on August 18. 2020

Fourth Amendment to the Agreement of Limited Partnership of HC Government Realty Holdings. L.P.. dated September 20, 2021

Form of Escrow Agreement by and among Branch Banking & Trust Company. HC Government Realty Trust, Inc.. and Orchard Securities, LLC, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 8.1 to the Company’s Pre-Qualification Amendment No. 4 to its Offering Statement on Form 1-A filed on October 24, 2016

Assignment of Escrow Agreement by and among HC Government Realty Trust, Inc., Branch Banking & Trust Company. Orchard Securities, LLC and
SANDLAPPER Securities, LLC, dated as of April 10. 2017, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on
April 25, 2017

Assignment of Escrow Agreement by and among HC Government Realty Trust. Inc., Branch Banking & Trust Company. Boustead Securities, LLC and

SANDLAPPER Securities. LLC. dated as of December 20. 2017, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 1-U filed on
December 21, 2017.

* Filed herewith.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation A, the issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on April 28, 2022.
HC GOVERNMENT REALTY TRUST, INC.
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Steven A. Hale II
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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/s/ John Linker Director April 28,2022
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EXHIBIT 2.5

HC GOVERNMENT REALTY TRUST, INC.

ARTICLES SUPPLEMENTARY

HC Government Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the “Corporation”), hereby certifies to the State Department of Assessments and Taxation of Maryland (the
“Department”) that:

FIRST: Under a power contained in Article V of the charter of the Corporation (the “Charter”), the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board of Directors”), by
duly adopted resolutions, classified and designated an additional 1,600,000 authorized but unissued shares (the “Shares”) of preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share, of the
Corporation as shares of 10.00% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value per share, of the Corporation (the “Series B Preferred Stock™). The total
number of shares of Series B Preferred Stock which the Corporation has authority to issue after giving effect to these Articles Supplementary is 3,650,000. There has been no
increase in the authorized shares of stock of the Corporation effected by these Articles Supplementary.

SECOND: A description of the preferences, conversion and other rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to dividends and other distributions, qualifications,
and terms and conditions of redemption of the Series B Preferred Stock is contained in the Articles Supplementary filed with, and accepted for record by, the Department on
March 14, 2019.

THIRD: The Shares have been classified and designated by the Board of Directors under the authority contained in the Charter.

FOURTH: These Articles Supplementary have been approved by the Board of Directors in the manner and by the vote required by law.

FIETH: The undersigned acknowledges these Articles Supplementary to be the corporate act of the Corporation and, as to all matters or facts required to be verified
under oath, the undersigned acknowledges that, to the best of his knowledge, information and belief, these matters and facts are true in all material respects and that this

statement is made under the penalties for perjury.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused these Articles Supplementary to be signed in its name and on its behalf by its President and attested to by its
Secretary on this 20th day of September, 2021.

ATTEST HC GOVERNMENT REALTY TRUST, INC.

/s/ Jacqlyn Piscetelli By: /s/ Steven A. Hale II (SEAL)
Name: Jacqlyn Piscetelli Name: Steven A. Hale II

Title: Secretary Title: President




EXHIBIT 2.7
AMENDMENT TO

AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF
HC GOVERNMENT REALTY TRUST, INC.

This Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws of HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. (this “Amendment™) is dated this 2 day of December, 2021.
WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, HC Government Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the “Corporation”), is governed, in part, by the Amended and Restated Bylaws of HC
Government Realty Trust, Inc. (the “Bylaws”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with Article XIV of the Bylaws, the Board of Directors of the Corporation has authorized, approved and adopted this
Amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned hereby certifies as follows:

1. DEFINED TERMS; REFERENCES.

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Bylaws. Each reference to “hereof,” “hereunder,” “herein” and
“hereby” and each other similar reference and each reference to “these Bylaws” and each other similar reference contained in the Bylaws shall, after the date hereof, refer to the
Bylaws as amended hereby.

2. AMENDMENT.

Section 5.8 of Article V of the Bylaws is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“Section 5.8 PRESIDENT. The president shall have such duties as may be assigned to the president by the Board of Directors or the chief executive officer.”

3. TITLES AND HEADINGS; NO FURTHER AMENDMENT.

The headings in this Amendment are for reference purposes only, and shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Amendment. Except as herein
amended, the provisions of the Bylaws shall remain in full force and effect.

[Signature on next page]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Directors of the Corporation authorized, approved and adopted this Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws of HC
Government Realty Trust, Inc. as of the date first written above.

HC GOVERNMENT REALTY TRUST, INC.
By: /s/ Steven A. Hale II

Name: Steven A. Hale IT
Title:  Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President




EXHIBIT 6.15.1

SECOND AMENDMENT TO
HC GOVERNMENT REALTY TRUST, INC.
2016 LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT (this “Amendment”) to the HC Government Realty Trust, Inc. 2016 Long Term Incentive Plan (as amended from time to time, the
“LTIP”) is made and entered into as of November 2, 2021 by HC Government Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the ‘Corporation”). All capitalized terms used but not
defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the LTIP.

WHEREAS, the Corporation established the LTIP by an original instrument adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the Board”) on October 20, 2016;

WHEREAS, on November 10, 2017, the Board adopted an amendment to the LTIP to include the limitation that the Corporation shall not issue Awards under the
LTIP representing more than 10% of the total number of outstanding shares of Company Stock, calculated on a fully-diluted basis (the “Award Limitation”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 14 of the LTIP, the Board may amend the LTIP in such respects as it shall deem advisable, subject to the approval of the
Corporation’s stockholders for certain LTIP amendments; and

WHEREAS, subject to the requisite approval of the Corporation’s stockholders, the Board has resolved by written consent, dated as of October 5, 2021, to amend the
LTIP to remove the Award Limitation.

NOW, THEREFORE, in accordance with Section 14 of the LTIP and the approval of the Corporation’s stockholders on November 2, 2021, the LTIP is hereby
amended, effective as of the date hereof, as follows:

1. Section 4(b) of the LTIP is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
“(b) [Reserved].”
2. Except as expressly amended by this Amendment, the LTIP shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with the provisions thereof.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature page follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the Corporation has caused this Amendment to be duly executed as of the date first written above.
HC GOVERNMENT REALTY TRUST, INC.

By: /s/ Steven A. Hale I1

Name: Steven A. Hale II
Title:  Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President

[Signature Page to Second Amendment to LTIP]
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Dated as of December 3, 2021
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HC GOVERNMENT REALTY TRUST, INC.,
HOLMWOOD PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS, LLC,
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as Guarantors
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and
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with

KEYBANC CAPITAL MARKETS INC.,,
as Sole Bookrunner and Lead Arranger
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This AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “ Agreement”) dated as of December 3, 2021, by and among HC GOVERNMENT REALTY
HOLDINGS, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (the “Borrower”), certain Subsidiaries of the Borrower as Subsidiary guarantors (together with each other Person that may
become a guarantor from time to time pursuant to Section 5.1, each individually, a “Subsidiary Guarantor” and collectively, the “Subsidiary Guarantors”), HC
GOVERNMENT REALTY TRUST, INC., a Maryland corporation, as parent guarantor (the “ Parent Guarantor”), and HOLMWOOD PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“Holmwood”; and together with the Parent Guarantor and the Subsidiary Guarantors, collectively, the “Guarantors”), the Lenders from
time to time party hereto, and KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as administrative Agent (the “Administrative Agent”).

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Guarantors, the Lenders, and the Administrative Agent are parties to that certain Credit Agreement dated as of October 22, 2019 (the
“Original Agreement Date”) (as amended, modified or supplemented and in effect immediately prior to the effectiveness hereof, the ‘Existing Credit Agreement”), pursuant

to which the Lenders made available to the Borrower, among other things, a revolving credit facility in the principal amount of $100,000,000, including a letter of credit sublimit
and a swingline facility sublimit, as set forth therein;

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 13.6 of the Existing Credit Agreement, the Borrower has requested that the Lenders under the Existing Credit Agreement (the
“Existing Lenders”) and the Administrative Agent amend and restate the Existing Credit Agreement to make certain changes as specified herein and to continue, without

novation or substitution, the extensions of credit made thereunder as Loans and other Credit Events under this Agreement, and the Existing Lenders and Administrative Agent
are willing to do so on the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, the parties hereto covenant and agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1.
DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1 Definitions; General.
In addition to terms defined elsewhere herein, the following terms shall have the following meanings for the purposes of this Agreement:

“Additional Costs” has the meaning given that term inSection 4.1(b).

“Adjusted Consolidated EBITDA” means, for any Reference Period, (a) Consolidated EBITDA for such Reference Period minus (b) Capital Reserves for all Real
Estate Assets (excluding Development Assets) as of the last day of such Reference Period.




“Adjusted NOI” means, for any Reference Period, with respect to any Real Estate Asset, (i) Property NOI from such Real Estate Asset(s) for such Reference Period,
minus (ii) the Capital Reserves with respect to such Real Estate Asset(s) as of the last day of such Reference Period.

“Administrative Agent” means KeyBank, as contractual representative for the Lenders under the terms of this Agreement, and any of its successors and duly
appointed assigns.

“Administrative Questionnaire” means the Administrative Questionnaire completed by each Lender and delivered to the Administrative Agent in a form supplied by
the Administrative Agent to the Lenders from time to time.

“Advance Rate” means sixty percent (60%).
“Affected Financial Institution” means (a) any EEA Financial Institution or (b) any UK Financial Institution

“Affiliate” means, when used with respect to a specified Person, another Person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, Controls or is
Controlled by or is under common Control with the Person specified. In no event shall the Administrative Agent or any Lender be deemed to be an Affiliate of any Loan Party.

“Agreement” has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph hereof.
“Anti-Corruption Laws” means all Applicable Laws specifically concerning or relating to bribery or corruption.

“Anti-Terrorism Laws” means all Applicable Laws relating to terrorism or money laundering, including Executive Order No. 13224 on Terrorist Financing, effective
September 24, 2001 and the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001, Public Law 107-56.

“Applicable Law” means all international, foreign, federal, state and local statutes, treaties, rules, guidelines, regulations, ordinances, codes, executive orders, and
administrative or judicial precedents or authorities, including the interpretation or administration thereof by any Governmental Authority charged with the enforcement,
interpretation or administration thereof, and all applicable administrative orders, directed duties, requests, licenses, authorizations and permits of, and agreements with, any
Governmental Authority, in each case whether or not having the force of law.

“Applicable Margin” means, for any day with respect to any Loan, the percentage set forth below corresponding to the Total Leverage Ratio as determined in
accordance with Section 10.1 in effect at such time:

Applicable Applicable
Margin for Margin Loans
Loans that are that are Base
Level Total Leverage Ratio LIBOR Loans Rate Loans
1 Less than 45% 1.70% 0.70%
2 Greater than or equal to 45% and less than 50% 1.90% 0.90%
3 Greater than or equal to 50% and less than 55% 2.15% 1.15%
4 Greater than or equal to 55% and less than 60% 2.40% 1.40%




Notwithstanding the foregoing, from the Effective Date through the date on which the Compliance Certificate for the fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2021 is
delivered in accordance with Section 9.3, the Applicable Margin shall equal the percentages corresponding to Level 1. Thereafter, the Applicable Margin shall be determined by
the Administrative Agent from time to time, based on the Total Leverage Ratio as set forth in the Compliance Certificate most recently delivered by the Borrower pursuant to
Section 9.3. Any adjustment to the Applicable Margin shall be effective (a) in the case of a quarterly Compliance Certificate of the Loan Parties delivered pursuant to Sections
9.3, as of the date that is 5 Business Days after the Administrative Agent’s receipt of a Compliance Certificate for the applicable fiscal quarter covered by such Compliance
Certificate, and (b) in the case of an annual Compliance Certificate of the Loan Parties delivered pursuant to Section 9.3, as of the date that is 5 Business Days after the
Administrative Agent’s receipt of a Compliance Certificate for the applicable fiscal year covered by such Compliance Certificate. If the Borrower fails to deliver a Compliance
Certificate pursuant to Section 9.3, the Applicable Margin shall equal the percentages corresponding to Level 4 until the date of the delivery of the required Compliance
Certificate. If any such Compliance Certificate shall later be determined to be incorrect and as a result a higher Applicable Margin should have been in effect for any period, the
Borrower shall pay to the Administrative Agent, for the account of each Lender, all additional interest and fees which would have accrued if the original Compliance Certificate
had been correct within five (5) Business Days of delivery of written notice thereof from the Administrative Agent.

“Appraisal” means an M.A.I. appraisal ordered by the Administrative Agent and prepared by a professional appraiser selected by the Administrative Agent, having at
least the minimum qualifications required under the applicable Governmental Authority, including without limitation, FIRREA, and determining “as is” market value of the
subject property as between a willing buyer and a willing seller.

“Appraised Value” means, with respect to any Real Estate Asset on any date of determination, the “as is” market value of such Real Estate Asset as reflected in the
most recent Appraisal of such Real Estate Asset as of such date, as the same may have been reasonably adjusted by the Administrative Agent based upon its internal review of
such Appraisal upon the addition of Borrowing Base Property pursuant to Section 5.1(b) or delivery of an Appraisal pursuant to Section 8.7(b), which review and adjustments
(if any) are based on criteria and factors then generally used and considered by the Administrative Agent in determining the value of similar real estate properties, such
Appraised Value to be reasonably satisfactory to the Requisite Lenders.




“Approved Fund” means any Fund that is administered or managed by (a) a Lender, (b) an Affiliate of a Lender or (c) an entity or an Affiliate of an entity that
administers or manages a Lender.

“Approved Management Agreement” has the meaning assigned that term in clause (f) of the definition of Eligible Property.

“Assignment and Acceptance Agreement” means an Assignment and Acceptance Agreement entered into by a Lender and an Eligible Assignee (with the consent of
any party whose consent is required by Section 13.5), and accepted by the Administrative Agent, substantially in the form of Exhibit A or any other form approved by the
Administrative Agent.

“Assignment and Subordination of Management Agreement” means, collectively, each Assignment and Subordination of Management Agreement entered into by a
Loan Party from time to time in favor of the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Administrative Agent, the Lenders and the Specified Derivatives Providers, with respect
to a Property Management Agreement over a Borrowing Base Property or other Management Agreement, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit O, and shall
include each such Assignment and Subordination of Management Agreement entered into in connection with the Existing Credit Agreement.

“Assignments of Leases and Rents” means each Assignment of Leases and Rents from time to time entered into by a Loan Party for the benefit of the Administrative
Agent, the Lenders and the Specified Derivatives Providers in connection with the addition of an Eligible Property as a Borrowing Base Property. Any Assignment of Leases
and Rents may, at the discretion of the Administrative Agent, be included within the applicable Mortgage.

“Assignments of Licenses, Permits and Contracts”means, collectively, each Assignment of Licenses, Permits and Contracts from time to time entered into by a Loan
Party from time to time for the benefit of the Administrative Agent, the Lenders and the Specified Derivatives Providers in connection with the addition of an Eligible Property
as a Borrowing Base Property. Any Assignment of Licenses, Permits and Contracts may, at the discretion of the Administrative Agent, be included within the applicable
Mortgage.

“Augmenting Lender” has the meaning given that term inSection 2.15(a).

“Bail-In Action” means the exercise of any Write-Down and Conversion Powers by the applicable Resolution Authority in respect of any liability of an Affected
Financial Institution.

“Bail-In Legislation” means (a) with respect to any EEA Member Country implementing Article 55 of Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament and of the
Council of the European Union, the implementing law, regulation rule or requirement for such EEA Member Country from time to time which is described in the EU Bail-In
Legislation Schedule and (b) with respect to the United Kingdom, Part I of the United Kingdom Banking Act 2009 (as amended from time to time) and any other law, regulation
or rule applicable in the United Kingdom relating to the resolution of unsound or failing banks, investment firms or other financial institutions or their affiliates (other than
through liquidation, administration or other insolvency proceedings).




“Base Rate” means, for any day, a rate per annum equal to the greatest of (a) the fluctuating annual rate of interest announced from time to time by KeyBank at its
principal office in Cleveland, Ohio, as its “prime rate” in effect on such day, (b) the Federal Funds Effective Rate in effect on such day plus 0.50%, and (c) LIBOR for a one-
month Interest Period on such day (or if such day is not a Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day) plus 1%; provided, that for purposes of this definition, LIBOR
for any Business Day shall be based on the rate appearing on the Reuters Screen LIBORO1 or LIBOR02 Page (or on any successor or substitute page of such service, or any
successor to or substitute for such service, providing rate quotations comparable to those currently provided on such page of such service, as determined by the Administrative
Agent from time to time for purposes of providing quotations of interest rates applicable to deposits in Dollars in the London interbank market) at approximately 11:00 a.m.,
London time, on such Business Day. Any change in the Base Rate due to a change in KeyBank’s “prime rate”, the Federal Funds Effective Rate or LIBOR shall be effective
from and including the effective date of such change in such rate, without notice or demand of any kind. The Base Rate is a reference rate used by KeyBank in determining
interest rates on certain loans and is not intended to be the lowest rate of interest charged by KeyBank or any other Lender on any extension of credit to any customer.

“Base Rate Loan” means a Loan bearing interest at a rate based on the Base Rate.

“Benefit Arrangement” means at any time an employee benefit plan within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA which is not a Plan or a Multiemployer Plan and
which is maintained or otherwise contributed to by any member of the ERISA Group.

“Benefit Plan” means any of (a) an “employee benefit plan” (as defined in ERISA) that is subject to Title I of ERISA, (b) a “plan” as defined in and subject to Section
4975 of the Code or (c) any Person whose assets include (within the meaning of the Plan Asset Regulations for purposes of Title I of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code) the
assets of any such “employee benefit plan” or “plan”.

“BHC Act Affiliate’ of a party means an “affiliate” (as such term is defined under, and interpreted in accordance with 12 U.S.C. 1841(k)) of such party.

“Borrower” has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph hereof.

“Borrowing Base Adjusted NOI” means, for any Reference Period, the Adjusted NOI of all Borrowing Base Properties for such Reference Period.

“Borrowing Base Availability” means, as at any date of determination, the least of:

(a) the aggregate Revolving Commitments on such date;

(b) the amount equal to the product of the aggregate Borrowing Base Property Value multiplied by the Advance Rate; and

(c) the maximum principal amount that would not cause the Borrowing Base DSCR to be less than 1.50 to 1.00.




“Borrowing Base Certificate” has the meaning given that term inSection 9.4.

“Borrowing Base DSCR” means, on any date of determination, the ratio of (a) Borrowing Base Adjusted NOI for the Reference Period most recently ended (and
including, on a pro forma basis, the projected Adjusted NOI for any Real Estate Asset being acquired with the proceeds of a requested Loan, as approved by the Administrative
Agent), divided by (b) the Implied Debt Service based on the aggregate outstanding principal amount of Revolving Loans on the date of determination (after giving effect to any
requested Loans or other Credit Event), on an annualized basis.

“Borrowing Base Property(ies)” means, as of any date, (a) each Existing Borrowing Base Property which has not been removed as a Borrowing Base Property
pursuant to Section 5.2, and (b) from and after the Effective Date, each Eligible Property with respect to which the conditions set forth inSection 5.1 have been satisfied and
which has not been removed as a Borrowing Base Property pursuant to Section 5.2, and that is owned by a Subsidiary of the Borrower as to which the Borrower (and any
applicable Subsidiary) has provided the Administrative Agent a perfected first priority pledge of 100% of the direct and indirect Equity Interests in such Subsidiary owned by
the Borrower or any Subsidiary of the Borrower, and each such Subsidiary pledgor and owner of the applicable Eligible Property has become a Subsidiary Guarantor; provided,
however, that for any Borrowing Base Property under the foregoing clause (b), upon the request of the Administrative Agent or the Requisite Lenders during the continuance of
an Event of Default, the applicable Subsidiary Guarantor(s) shall provide the Administrative Agent with a Mortgage (which shall include a an Assignment of Leases and Rents
and Assignment of Licenses, Permits and Contracts) and satisfy the other conditions and deliveries set forth in Exhibit Q, and, for any Eligible Property as to which such
conditions and deliveries are not satisfied within thirty (30) days (or such longer period approved by the Administrative Agent) after written request therefor, such Eligible
Property shall cease to be a Borrowing Base Property at the election of the Requisite Lenders.

“Borrowing Base Property Request” has the meaning given that term in Section 5.1(b)(i).

“Borrowing Base Property Value” means, on any date of determination, for each Borrowing Base Property eligible for inclusion in the calculation of Borrowing Base
Availability on such date, the Appraised Value of such Borrowing Base Property as most recently determined under this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, no Borrowing
Base Property Value shall be attributable to any Borrowing Base Property that is vacant, has a tenant that is in payment default of its Lease or is the subject of a bankruptcy or

other insolvency proceeding (except in the event such tenant’s Lease has been assumed in connection with such bankruptcy or other insolvency proceeding) or has gone dark.

“Budget” has the meaning given to that term inSection 9.5()).




“Business Day” means (a) any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which banks in Cleveland, Ohio or New York, New York are authorized or required
to close and (b) with reference to a LIBOR Loan any such day that is also a day on which dealings in deposits of Dollars are carried out in the London interbank market;
provided that, when used in connection with SOFR, the component of the Base Rate based upon SOFR or any other calculation or determination involving SOFR, the term
“Business Day” means any such day that is also a U.S. Government Securities Business Day.

“Cape Canaveral Consent” means a ground lessor consent and estoppel agreement with respect to the Cape Canaveral Property, which such agreement must be
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.

“Cape Canaveral Permitted Ground Lease” means that certain Lease Agreement dated November, 2010 by and between Canaveral Port Authority, as lessor and
Hoover Property Canaveral, LLC as lessee, and assigned to from Hoover Property Canaveral, LLC to Gov CBP Cape Canaveral, LLC pursuant to that certain Assignment and
Assumption of Ground Lease dated March 25, 2015, as further amended by that certain First Amendment to Thirty Year Lease between Canaveral Port Authority and Gov CBP
Cape Canaveral, LLC dated October 28, 2015.

“Cape Canaveral Property” means the Real Estate Asset located at 200 George King Boulevard, Cape Canaveral, FL 32920.

“Capital Lease Obligations” means, with respect to any Person, the obligations of such Person to pay rent or other amounts under any lease of (or other arrangement
conveying the right to use) real or personal property, or a combination thereof, which obligations are required to be classified and accounted for as capital leases on a balance
sheet of such Person under GAAP; and, for the purposes of this Agreement, the amount of such obligations at any time shall be the capitalized amount thereof at such time
determined in accordance with GAAP.

“Capital Reserves” means, as of any date and with respect to any Real Estate Asset, an amount equal to (a) the aggregate leasable square footage of all completed
space of such Real Estate Asset, multiplied by (b) $0.25. If the term Capital Reserves is used without reference to any specific Real Estate Asset then the amount shall be
determined on an aggregate basis with respect to all Real Estate Assets of the Parent Guarantor and its Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries and the Parent Guarantor’s applicable Equity
Percentage of all Real Estate Assets of any non-Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries and Unconsolidated Affiliates.

“Cash” shall mean money in legal tender of the United States.

“Cash Collateralize” means, to pledge and deposit with or deliver to the Administrative Agent, for its benefit and the benefit of the Lenders, as collateral for Letter of
Credit Liabilities or obligations of Lenders to fund participations in respect of Letter of Credit Liabilities, cash or deposit account balances or, if the Administrative Agent shall
agree in its sole discretion, other credit support, in each case pursuant to documentation in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent. ““ Cash Collateral” shall
have a meaning correlative to the foregoing and shall include the proceeds of such cash collateral and other credit support.




“Cash Equivalents” means: (a) securities issued, guaranteed or insured by the United States of America or any of its agencies with maturities of not more than one
year from the date acquired; (b) certificates of deposit with maturities of not more than one year from the date issued by a United States federal or state chartered commercial
bank of recognized standing, or a commercial bank organized under the laws of any other country which is a member of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and
Development, or a political subdivision of any such country, acting through a branch or agency, which bank has capital and unimpaired surplus in excess of $500,000,000 and
which bank or its holding company has a short-term commercial paper rating of at least A-2 or the equivalent by S&P or at least P-2 or the equivalent by Moody’s; (c) reverse
repurchase agreements with terms of not more than seven days from the date acquired, for securities of the type described in clause (a) above and entered into only with
commercial banks having the qualifications described in clause (b) above; (d) commercial paper issued by any Person incorporated under the laws of the United States of
America or any State thereof and rated at least A-2 or the equivalent thereof by S&P or at least P-2 or the equivalent thereof by Moody’s, in each case with maturities of not
more than one year from the date acquired; and (e) investments in money market funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, which have net
assets of at least $500,000,000 and at least 85% of whose assets consist of securities and other obligations of the type described inclauses (a) through (d) above.

“Certification of Beneficial Ownership” means a certification required by the Administrative Agent from the Loan Parties regarding beneficial ownership and
controlling parties in accordance with, and pursuant to, 31 C.F.R. §1010.230.

“CMBS Consent Letter” means that certain Limited Consent Under Credit Agreement, dated as of March 12, 2021, among the Loan Parties party thereto, the
Administrative Agent, and the Lenders party thereto.

“CMBS Entities” means each of (i) GOV Lorain, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, (ii) GOV Jonesboro, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and
(iii) GOV PSL, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

“CMBS Loan Agreement” means that certain Loan Agreement dated July 22, 2013 by and among the CMBS Entities and GS Mortgage Securities Corporation II,
Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 2013-GCJ14 (as successor to Starwood Mortgage Capital LLC).

“CMBS Properties” means each of (i) 221 West Sth Street, Lorain, OH 44052, (ii) 1809 Latourette Drive, Jonesboro, AR 72404 and (iii) 650 N.W. Peacock
Boulevard, Port St. Lucie, FL 34986.

“CMBS Servicer” means LNR Partners, LLC.

“Collateral” means, collectively, (a) with respect to any applicable Borrowing Base Property, all of the “Property” or other assets referred to in any Mortgage, (b) the
“Collateral” as defined in the Pledge and Security Agreement, (c) the Collateral Accounts, and (d) all of the other property that is or is intended under the terms of any Deposit
Account Pledge Agreement and any other applicable Collateral Document to be subject to Liens in favor of the Administrative Agent for the benefit of itself, the Lenders, and
the Specified Derivatives Providers.




“Collateral Accounts” means collectively (i) the L/C Collateral Account and (ii) each of the deposit accounts established pursuant toSection 8.11 maintained by, or on
behalf of, the Administrative Agent and which are subject to the Administrative Agent’s “control” (as such term is used in Article 9 of the UCC) pursuant to an account control
agreement in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent or other manner satisfactory to the Administrative Agent; provided that, other than with respect to the
L/C Collateral Account, the Administrative Agent shall not exercise such “control” until and unless an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing.

“Collateral Documents” means, collectively, (a) the Mortgages, the Assignments of Leases and Rents, the Assignments of Licenses, Permits and Contracts, and each
other agreement, instrument or document that creates or purports to create a Lien in favor of the Administrative Agent for the benefit of itself, the Lenders, and the Specified
Derivatives Providers on any Borrowing Base Property, (b) each Pledge and Security Agreement, (c) each Assignment and Subordination of Management Agreement, (d) the
Deposit Account Pledge Agreement, (¢) each Negative Pledge Agreement and (f) each other agreement, instrument or document that creates or purports to create a Lien in favor
of the Administrative Agent for the benefit of itself, the Lenders, and the Specified Derivatives Providers on any assets or properties of the Loan Parties. Any Collateral
Document executed and/or delivered in connection with a Borrowing Base Property secured by a Mortgage may take the form of assignments of, and amendments and
restatements of, existing mortgages or deeds of trust or other collateral documents encumbering an Eligible Property, if approved by the Administrative Agent in its reasonable
discretion.

“Commitment” means, as to any Lender, such Lender’s Revolving Commitment

“Commitment Percentage” means, as to each Lender, the ratio, expressed as a percentage, of (a) the amount of such Lender’s Revolving Commitment to (b) the
aggregate amount of the Revolving Commitments of all Lenders, as set forth on Schedule 3 (as such Schedule 3 may be updated from time to time by the Administrative
Agent); provided, however, that if at the time of determination the Revolving Commitments have terminated or been reduced to zero, the “Commitment Percentage” of each
Lender shall be the Commitment Percentage of such Lender in effect immediately prior to such termination or reduction.

“Commodity Exchange Act” means the Commodity Exchange Act (7 U.S.C. § 1 et seq.), as amended from time to time, and any successor statute.

“Compliance Certificate” has the meaning given that term inSection 9.3.

“Condemnation” has the meaning given that term inSection 8.15(b).

“Condemnation Proceeds” has the meaning given that term inSection 8.15(b).




“Connection Income Taxes” means Other Connection Taxes that are imposed on or measured by net income (however denominated) or that are franchise Taxes or
branch profits Taxes.

“Consolidated” or “consolidated”, with reference to any term herein, means that term as applied to the accounts of the Loan Parties and their respective Subsidiaries,
consolidated in accordance with GAAP, as applicable.

“Consolidated EBITDA” means, for any period, without duplication, the Consolidated Net Income (or loss) of the Loan Parties and their consolidated Subsidiaries for
such period (before minority interests), adjusted by (x) adding thereto, in each case to the extent actually deducted in determining such Consolidated Net Income, (i)
Consolidated Interest Expense of the Loan Parties and their consolidated Subsidiaries for such period, (ii) consolidated Income Tax expense of the Loan Parties and their
consolidated Subsidiaries for such period, (iii) real estate and related intangible asset amortization and depreciation of the Loan Parties and their consolidated Subsidiaries for
such period, (iv) any loss (or minus any income or gain) in each case resulting from early extinguishment of Indebtedness in such period, (v) any loss (or minus any net income
or gain) resulting from a Derivatives Contract (including by virtue of a termination thereof) in such period, (vi) any non-recurring non-cash charges in such period to the extent
that such non-cash charges do not give rise to a liability that would be required to be reflected on the Consolidated balance sheet of the Loan Parties (and so long as no cash
payments or cash expenses will be associated therewith (whether in the current period or for any future period)), (vii) fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (including the Existing Credit Agreement) and any other Loan Document and any amendment, consent,
waiver, or other supplementation or modification thereof, (viii) fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with the litigation disclosed on Schedule 7.9 in an aggregate
amount not to exceed $1,000,000 in such period, and (ix) costs and expenses associated with the Loan Parties’ development team in connection with the development or
material redevelopment of Real Estate Assets which are not capitalized into the applicable project, in each case as reasonably approved by the Administrative Agent, and (y)
subtracting therefrom, in each case to the extent included in determining Consolidated Net Income for such period, the amount of non-recurring non-cash gains during such
period; provided, however, that Consolidated EBITDA shall be determined without giving effect to any extraordinary gains or losses (including any taxes attributable to any
such extraordinary gains or losses) or gains or losses (including any taxes attributable to such gains or losses) from sales of assets other than from sales of inventory (excluding
real property) in the ordinary course of business. Consolidated EBITDA for any Reference Period shall be adjusted on a pro forma basis to exclude any Consolidated EBITDA
from Real Estate Assets sold or otherwise transferred during such Reference Period and to include the Consolidated EBITDA for Real Estate Assets acquired during such
Reference Period in a manner satisfactory to the Administrative Agent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for purposes of calculating Consolidated EBITDA, only the Loan Parties
Equity Percentage of the items comprising Consolidated EBITDA of any non-Wholly-Owned Subsidiary or Unconsolidated Affiliate (or, if applicable, such other amount to
which such Loan Party is entitled or for which it is obligated based on an arm’s length agreement), shall be included in such determination of Consolidated EBITDA.
Consolidated EBITDA shall be adjusted to remove any impact of straight-lining of rents and amortization of intangibles pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification No.
805, Business Combinations (formerly Statement of Financial Account Standards No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations).
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“Consolidated Fixed Charges” means, for any fiscal period, the sum (without duplication) of, on a Consolidated basis for the Loan Parties and their respective
Subsidiaries, (a) Consolidated Interest Expense paid or required to be paid in cash for such period, (b) the aggregate amount of scheduled principal payments of Indebtedness
(excluding balloon payments at maturity) made or required to be made during such period by the Loan Parties and their respective Subsidiaries, (c) Restricted Payments paid or
required to be paid in cash by the Parent Guarantor or any of their Subsidiaries during such period on any Preferred Equity Interests (other than any Preferred Equity Interests
that meet the Preferred Equity Conditions to the reasonable satisfaction of the Administrative Agent but including, in any event, such Restricted Payments on the Series C
Preferred and any redemptions or repurchases of Preferred Equity Interests) issued by the Loan Parties or any of their Subsidiaries, and (d) the Parent Guarantor’s and its
Subsidiaries’ Equity Percentage of all Consolidated Fixed Charges from any non-Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries or Unconsolidated Affiliates (or, if applicable, such greater
amount for which it is liable by contract or otherwise). Consolidated Fixed Charges shall be adjusted on a pro forma basis to account for properties acquired or sold in the period
in a manner satisfactory to the Administrative Agent. For the avoidance of doubt, the Restricted Payments paid or required to be paid on the Series C Preferred and any purchase
price paid in connection with the repurchase of shares of Series A Preferred or the Series B Preferred or any other Preferred Equity Interests will be included in the calculation
of Consolidated Fixed Charges, but the cash dividends paid or required to be paid on the Series A Preferred or Series B Preferred will not be 